






PROCLAMATION 

 

 
 
WHEREAS, the American Cancer Fund for Children and Kids Cancer Connection report cancer 
is the leading cause of death by disease among U.S. children between infancy and age 15. This 
tragic disease is detected in nearly 15,000 of our country's young people each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, one in five of our nation's children loses his or her battle with cancer.  Many infants, 
children and teens will suffer from long-term effects of comprehensive treatment, including 
secondary cancers; and  
 
WHEREAS, founded over twenty years ago by Steven Firestein, a member of the philanthropic 
Max Factor cosmetics family, the American Cancer Fund for Children, Inc. and Kids Cancer 
Connection, Inc. are dedicated to helping these children and their families; and  
 
WHEREAS, the American Cancer Fund for Children and Kids Cancer Connection provide a 
variety of vital patient psychosocial services to children undergoing cancer treatment at Medical 
City Children’s Hospital in Dallas, Dell Children's Medical Center of Central Texas in Austin, as 
well as participating hospitals throughout the country, thereby enhancing the quality of life for 
these children and their families; and  
 
WHEREAS, the American Cancer Fund for Children and Kids Cancer Connection also sponsor 
Courageous Kid Recognition Award presentations, community get well cards and hospital 
celebrations in honor of a child's determination and bravery to fight the battle against childhood 
cancer. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Christopher Fielder, and the Leander City Council do hereby 
proclaim September, 2015 as: 

“CHILDHOOD CANCER AWARENESS” 
MONTH 

 
 
   
Signed this 3rd day of September, 2015.                    Attest:             

 

__________________________                                       _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor                                                 Debbie Haile, TRMC City Secretary 

 



 
 
 
 

                                                                         MINUTES 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 

201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ August 20, 2015 at 7:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 
Mayor Fielder opened the meeting at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Council Member Seiler delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
 

3. Staff Comments: Pat Womack , Public Works Director announced that the Fall Clean up will be on  
Sat. Sept. 10, 2015 

  4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
            Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
 

Judith Swanzey. 307 Edgewood Cove-  spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
Owen Hayhurst.  2103 Woodway Drive spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
Blessing Nwakamme.  316 Sunnybrooke Drive - spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
Mark Nwakamma.  316 Sunnybrooke Drive - spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 

            Adeline Ceschin. 2005 Sydnee Drive- spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
Amy Corbett , 2004 Sydnee Drive - spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
Debbie Hayhurst, 2013 Woodway Drive - spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
Sherry LeBlanc, 2102 Cottontail Drive - spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
Sarah Flores, 2001 Sydnee Drive - spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W 
John Stetson, 2011 Rim Rock Drive - spoke against the gas station on Old 2243 W  

             Daniel Field, stated that the zoning of the property at the gas station site on Old 2243 W has been  
             in place and agrees with the zoning 
 
       5.  Graduation and Presentation of Project for the Junior Leadership Academy sponsored by the 
            Greater Leander Chamber of Commerce Leadership Program 
            Bridget Brandt, President of the Greater Leander Chamber of Commerce introduced the 
            Members of the Junior Leadership Academy and told about the program.  The following members  
            were introduced and given a trophy for their participation: 
 

Anna Stephenson  
Caleb Williams  
Brylee Brandt  
Blaise Armour  
Sarenna Rae Jones  
Diego Duarte  

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jeff Seiler 
    Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                 Place 6 – Troy Hill  
    Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd    City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

 



 

 
 
 

  6.  Approval of the minutes: August 6, 2015 
 

       7.  A Resolution of the City of Leander, Texas to join the Central Texas Clean Air Coalition 

  8.  Second reading of an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas annexing 126.098 acres of land, more  
       or  less, known as the Bradley tract, into the corporate limits of the City, including the abutting  
       roadways and rights-of-way, at the request of the property owner, approving a service plan for the  
       annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause; and providing an effective date  
 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve the consent agenda. Second by  
       Council Member Shepherd.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
   

   
 
 

  9.  Public Hearing to consider proposed assessments to be levied against property located in the Oak  
       Creek Public Improvement District and a proposed update to the Service and Assessment Plan and  
       Assessment Roll for Calendar Year 2015  
       Robert Powers, Finance Director explained  
 
       Action on an Ordinance Consider an ordinance setting the calendar year 2015 assessment, approving  
       an assessment roll and annual update to the Service and Assessment Plan for calendar year 2015,  
       and levying assessments for calendar year 2015 for property in the Oak Creek Public Improvement  
       District.  
 
       Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
10.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #15-Z-010:  Consider a zoning change for two parcels of land located  
       at 1208 S Bagdad Road for 51.84 acres, more or less, from MF-2-B, Multi-Family and GC-3-C,  
       General Commercial to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Anthony Goode on behalf of AHS-RS, Trail at Leander, LLC 
       The Applicant has requested postponement of this item 
 
       Mayor Fielder announced that the applicant has postponed this item 
 
 11.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #15-Z-017:  Consider a zoning change for a parcel of land located at  
       6301 N. Bagdad Road for 11.0959 acres, more or less, from SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to SFU-2-B,  
       Single Family Urban, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Josh Becker on behalf of Richard A. Alley 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #15-Z-017: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for a parcel of land located at 6301 N. Bagdad Road for 11.0959 acres, more or less from SFR-1-B,  
       Single Family Rural to SFU-2-B, Single Family Urban, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
 
       Motion made by Council Member Abruzzese to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

 



 
   
 
12.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case #15-Z-011:  Consider a zoning change for a parcel of land located at  
       Osage Drive and Highland Trail for 0.94 acres, more or less, from SFU-2-B, Single Family Urban to  
       PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County, Texas  
       Applicant: Mike Siefert on behalf of Lookout Development Group, L.P. 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 
 
       Mike Seifert with Lookout Group explained the proposed zoning request 
       

 Thomas Yambrick, 1908 Western Justice – spoke against 
 Frankie Thomas, 1801 Buffalo Speedway – spoke against 
 Bryan Thomas, 1801 Buffalo Speedway – spoke against 
 Bill Mills, 1811 Alamo Bound – spoke against 
 Vicky Waser, 2829 Granite Hill Drive – spoke against 
 Laura Yambrick, 1908 Western Justice – spoke against 
 Phylis Miquil, 1805 Buffalo Thunder – spoke against 
 Michael Childers, 2611 Running Wyld – spoke against 
 Scott Morris, 2701 Highland Trail – spoke against 
 John Handy Bosmer, 1917 Cross Draw Trail – spoke against  
 Carl Norman, 1821 Cross Draw – spoke against 
 Steve Brand, 1802 Alamo Bound - spoke in favor of 
 David Siebold, 1801 Muledeer Run - spoke against  
 Ron Militello, 1913 Leaders Lane – spoke against   
 Angela Blair 2515 Highland Trail – is undecided but has concerns 
 Jason Dishongh,   Wolf Dancer – spoke in favor of 

       Wade Funk, 2524 Quick Fort - spoke in favor of 
 Jai Rao, 1905 Western Justice – spoke against 

       Amy Romig, 2516 Highland Trail – spoke against 
       Lauri Smit, 2606 Running Wyld – was undecided but expressed concerns 
       Josh Becker, 2525 Quick Fort Drive     - spoke in favor of 
       Tamara Nelson, 1707 Trustworthy Ct. – was undecided but thanked council for their service            

  Nichole Holmes, 1717 Buffalo Thunder – spoke against 
 
       Action on Zoning Case #15-Z-011: amending Ordinance #05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance  
       for a parcel of land located at Osage Drive and Highland Trail for 0.94 acres, more or less, from  
       SFU-2-B, Single Family Urban to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Williamson County,  
       Texas    
 
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to deny the request.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem  
       Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye” to deny the request. 
 
       Mayor Fielder called for a break at 9:10 pm 
       Council reconvened from break at 9:21 pm 

 
 

      
          
     13.  Second Reading of an Ordinance on Zoning Case #14-Z-034: amending Ordinance #05-018, the  
            Composite Zoning Ordinance for several parcels of land generally located to the north east of the  
            intersection of CR 279 and Collaborative Way, to the north of Savanna Ranch Subdivision ,Leander,  
            Williamson County, Texas 
            Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained 

       Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
 Motion passes, all voting “aye”  

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 



     14.  a.  Consider a Development, ETJ Release, and Consent Agreement for the Caughfield Tract 

     b. Consider an Ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas giving consent to the creation of a 
            municipal utility district on the Caughfield Tract 
 
       Mayor Fielder announced that this item (a & b) have been pulled from the agenda 

 
     15.  Consider Amended and Restated Agreement regarding Consent to Creation of Leander Municipal  
            Utility Districts No. 1, 2 and 3 and Development of the Bar W. Ranch 
 
            Mayor Fielder announced that this item has been pulled from the agenda 
 
     16.  Consider an Award of Contract for the Bagdad Road Sidewalk Improvements Project 
            Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director explained 

       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     17.  Consider Economic Development Ordinance Amendments 
            Mark Willis, Economic Development Director explained 

       Motion made by Council Member Abruzzese to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
   Motion passes, all voting “aye”  

 
     18.  Consider the Partial Release and Termination of a Drainage Easement located in Oak Creek Phase 5 
             Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 

       Motion made by Council Member Stephenson to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem 
Navarrette. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
     19.  Presentation and Discussion on Proposed FY 2015-16 Annual Budget  
            Kent Cagle, City Manager presented the proposed budget          

20.  Presentation on Water & Wastewater Cost of Service and Rate Study Update (FY16– FY18) 
       Robert Powers, Finance Director presented the Study 
    
21.  Discuss and consider forming a Citizens Bond Committee 

            A Discussion was held 
 
            Motion made by Mayor Fielder to form a Citizens Bond Committee and appoint two council  
            members and direct staff to do so with no tax increase and to appoint two council  
            members at the next meeting.  Second by Council Member Stephenson.  Motion passes, all 
            voting “aye” 
 
     22.  Council Members Closing Statements  
            Council Members gave their closing statements 
 

             
  

23.  Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section  
       1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding legal 
       issues related to the City's boundaries and future growth of the City and pursuant to Section 551.072,  
       Texas Government Code, to deliberate the acquisition and value of real property  
 
        Council convened into executive session at 10:09 pm 
        Council reconvened into open session at 10:20 pm  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 



 
 
 
24.  Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council's discretion  
       regarding the City's boundaries and future growth of the City and to deliberate the acquisition and  

value of real property  
 
 No action taken 
 

         25.  Consider Purchase Contract for the acquisition of 0.246 acres pf Right-of-Way, 0.171 acres of Public  
                Utility Easement, and 0.211 acres of Wastewater and Drainage Easement from Floyd and Marie Waley  
                for the Old 2243 W. Roadway Improvements Project in the amount of $46,616.00   
 
                Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Hill. 
                Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

 
26.  Adjournment  
       With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:21 pm. 
 
 
 
       Attest: 
 
 
       ________________________________               ________________________________ 
       Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 3, 2014 

 
 

 
Subject: Approval to Extend the Library Management & Operations Agreement for FY 2015-16 
 
Background: Library Systems Services, LLC (LSSI) has managed the library under a contract 
with the City since it’s opening in 2006.  LSSI provides all staffing, staff training, library books 
and materials, programming, etc.  The management and operations contract with LSSI is 
renewed each year during the budget process and it is once again due for renewal for FY 2015-
16.  The contract is extended by the Council’s approval of Schedule “A”, and the amount of 
funding is based on the amount earmarked for the Library in each fiscal year budget. 
 
The proposed LSSI budget for next year is $565,167. This is an increase of $29,065 from last 
year.  The additional funds are for a 2.7% pay increase for Library staff and a $15,302 one-time 
expense for a server upgrade and WiFi. The current level of services will remain the same. 
 
Financial Consideration: $565,167 from the General Fund for FY 2015-6 
  
Recommendation: Staff respectfully requests Council approval of Schedule “A” and 
authorization for the City Manager to execute the agreement to extend the Management & 
Operations with Library Systems Services contract for FY 2015-16 in the amount of $565,167. 
 
Attachments:  Schedule “A” 
 
Prepared by: Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 Schedule “A” for FY 2015-2016 
 City of Leander Agreement for Library Management & Operations 
  
A. Statement of Work 

 
LSS will administer the operations of City's library facilities (collectively, "Library"), including the accounting for, 
purchase of and payment for payroll services and goods and services from vendors for budgeted utilities, 
supplies, repairs, maintenance, Library Materials (as defined below) and Capital Items (as defined below) 
sufficient to operate the Library in accordance with the policies and guidelines approved by the City. 
 
LSS shall provide, by and through its own employees or independent contractors ("LSS Staff') any labor LSS 
deems necessary for the operation of the Library.  The cost of the LSS Staff shall be paid by LSS and is 
included in the Operating Budget (as defined below). LSS shall have the sole and absolute right to hire and/or 
terminate the employment of the Library Staff from time to time to perform work under this Agreement. LSS will 
provide the appropriate staffing levels to keep the Library open to the public 74 hours per week. The Parties 
will mutually agree upon the actual hours the Library will be open to the public each day of the week. 
 
In addition, upon the City’s request, LSS will update the long-range plan for the Library in cooperation with City, 
elected and appointed local officials, other community stakeholders and the Library Staff ("Plan"). Using 
current professional standards and practice, the Plan will identify challenges and opportunities for the Library 
staff and corresponding strategic responses, including specific, measurable goals and objectives. The Parties 
recognize the Plan will take approximately six-months to complete.  
 
This Plan, when approved by City, will help govern the direction and focus of the Library Staff in fulfillment of 
their mission of providing effective and efficient Library service to meet the personal, professional and lifelong 
learning needs of the citizens served by the Library.  
 
B. Scope of Work 
 
1. Governance- Develop and maintain effective working relationships with local staff, elected officials, other 
appointed officials and community groups such as the Friends of the Library. 
 
2. Fiscal Responsibility-  

a. Develop and maintain effective and efficient financial procedures. 
b. Review all aspects of Library operation and service for efficiency and cost-effectiveness, 
while making changes as appropriate. 
c. Lead preparation of annual operating and capital budget requests.  
d. Continue to seek innovative means of adding value to City at little or no additional cost 
including the procurement of grants. 

 
3. Management and Reporting- 

a. Prepare and provide regular reports to City, describing Library activities and recommending 
changes in policies, procedures and operations as necessary and appropriate. 
b. Prepare and provide timely statistical reports to the City on Library activities. 

 
4. Staff Development and Coaching- 

a. Support orientation, training and professional development of all Library Staff. 
b. Provide leadership and guidance to maximize Library Staff effectiveness in Library 
operations. 

 
5. Public Services- 

a. Provide prompt, friendly and accurate assistance in the use of the Library. 
b. Provide prompt and accurate circulation, information and reference services. 
c. Provide requested materials promptly. 
 
 



6. Collections- Provide high quality materials on a wide variety of subjects in varied formats for 
all age groups present in the community, according to established collection management 
plans. 
 
7. Programming- Provide high quality, effective educational, recreational and cultural programs 
of interest to all age groups present in the community. 
 
8. Information Technology- Develop and implement short and long range plans to procure, 
install and support sufficient hardware, software, network, telecommunications and other 
resources necessary to support the Library's mission. 
 
9. Marketing- Effectively disseminate information and promote use of the Library, resources and 
services. 
 
10. Facilities- Work with Library Staff and local officials to ensure effective building maintenance 
by promptly identifying and reporting problems with the physical plant. 
 
C.  Excluded Services   
 
LSS shall have no responsibility for the administration, purchase or payment of, or any liability 
or duty to defend claims for: 
 
1. Any goods or services, including payroll, that were rendered to Customer prior to the Effective 
Date. 
 
2. Unfair labor practices, grievances, or any claims or litigation whatsoever arising out of the 
hiring and/or firing, layoff, subcontracting, assignment, reassignment or discipline of the Library 
Staff not employed by LSS, provided that such claims have not resulted from negligence or 
wrongful acts of LSS under federal, state, or municipal law. 
 
3. Any worker's compensation claims arising from injuries sustained prior to the Effective Date 
from any Library Staff not employed by LSS at the time of such injuries. 
 
4. Any costs of any voluntary retirement incentives, employee buyouts or other similar programs 
adopted by the City. 
 
5.  Any Capital Items, which shall mean any capital acquisitions, improvements or replacements 
of any of the properties, facilities, equipment, furniture, furnishings, fixtures or leasehold 
improvements of the Library, except that such Capital Items proposed by LSS for its benefit (i.e. 
coffee bar, etc.) shall be approved by City and paid for by LSS. 
 
6. Any amount of costs for unbudgeted repairs, maintenance and/or upkeep of Capital Items 
owned by the City. 
7. Any increases in the cost of insurance, utilities, rent, fuel and any state or federal tariff items 
over the rate for such items prevailing as of the date of execution of this Agreement. 
 
D. Library Materials and Materials Handling Fee 
 
On behalf and for the benefit of City, LSS will negotiate favorable discounts and prices from 
Library suppliers for the purchase of all Library materials, which shall include books, periodicals, 
newspapers, microfilms, electronic database subscriptions, standing orders, audio and video 
materials and cases, automated reference services, binding, cataloging and processing costs 
and the Materials Handling Fee (as defined below) (collectively, "Library Materials"). The 
responsibility for Library collection development policies will remain with City, and all Library 



Materials selections will be the responsibility of LSS, LSS will place orders with the suppliers 
and perform the accounting functions related to those orders, including prompt payment of the 
invoices. In accounting for the cost of the Library Materials, LSS shall include a fee of five 
percent (5%) of the cost of the Library Materials ordered ("Materials Handling Fee").  It is 
specifically provided that LSS shall comply with State law with respect to all such purchases for 
and on behalf of the City. 
 
E. Operating Budget and Charges 
 

LSS Charges-   Library 
Fiscal Year     Operating Budget  Materials** 

   Annual  Monthly 
October 1, 2015-September 30, 2016: $565,167* $47,121.42 $97,565 
 
* Includes a $15,302 one-time expense for Wi-Fi and server upgrade. 
** Total cost of Library Materials is included in the Operating Budget and shall include the 
Materials Handling Fee. The funding of the purchase of all such Library Materials shall be 
subject to the prior appropriation of funds for the Library Materials by the City Council of the 
City. 
   
The Operating Budget is contingent on other existing contractual terms, obligations and 
responsibilities remaining the same except as expressly noted herein.  
 
Prior to three (3) months before the end of the last period to which the amount of Charges have 
been agreed upon, the Parties shall begin to negotiate in good faith the amount of Charges that 
will apply to the next period. If the Parties have not reached such agreement one (1) month 
before the end of such period, then the Charges for the next twelve (12) month period, or such 
fewer number of months remaining until the Expiration Date ("Remaining Months"), shall be 
equal to the Charge for the last month of such period multiplied by twelve (12) or the number of 
Remaining Months, whichever is less, plus a Cost of Living escalator equal to the increase in 
the Consumer Price Index for the Dallas area during the twelve (12) months that precede 
August 1st of the then current calendar year. 
 
Intending to be legally bound, the parties have amended this Schedule “A” this ___day of 
September 2015 and executed by their duly authorized representatives. 
 
Library Systems & Services, LLC   City of Leander 
 
 
By:                                 By:  ___________________                              

Ronald A. Dubberly       Kent Cagle 
President & CEO     City Manager

 



AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 

 

 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 3, 2015 

 
 
 
Subject:  Special Permit Approval for the Bluegrass Festival  
 
Background: The 10th Annual Bluegrass Festival is scheduled for September 25th and 26th at 
the Robin Bledsoe Park Amphitheater.  Three bands will play Friday evening beginning at 7 pm 
and four bands will play on Saturday beginning at 6 pm. 
 
A special permit is requested to allow Bledsoe Park to remain open for an additional hour on 
Friday and Saturday night. Section 1.426 of the Park Rules & Regulations Ordinance states that 
parks are open to the public from 6:00 am to10 pm daily and park curfew hours are established 
from 10:01 pm. until 5:59 pm 
 
Financial Consideration: None 
  
Recommendation:  Staff respectfully requests Council approval of a Special Permit to allow 
Bledsoe Park to remain open until 11 pm on September 25th and 26th for the Bluegrass Festival.  
 
Attachments:  Special Permit Application  
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

Special Event Permit Application 
 
 
Applicant/Organization Name: Leander Parks & Recreation Department 
 
Name & Contact Information of Responsible Individual:  
Stephen Bosak, Director 
Leander Parks & Recreation Department (PARD) 
P.O. Box 319 – Leander, TX  78646 
Phone: 512.528.9909   
 
Description of Event: Leander PARD will host the 10th Annual Bluegrass Festival in Bledsoe 
Park Amphitheater September 25-26, 2015.  Three bands are scheduled from 7 to 10:30 pm on 
Friday and four are scheduled from 6 to 10:30 pm on Saturday.  The event is free to the public.  
Food and drink concessions will be sold. 
 
A Special Permit is requested to extend park hours from 10 pm to 11 pm on Friday and 
Saturday night. 
 
City Services Needed:  
Utilities & Services Needed: Electricity, Restrooms & Water 
Sanitation/Litter Pick Up: By PARD    
Security:     By Leander Police Department  
Traffic Control:  By PARD 
 
Will alcohol be served or sold?      No 
 
Will the proposed activity interfere or detract from the general public use of the area?  
The event will be open to the public and there are no other scheduled park activities during the 
event.   
 
Will the proposed activity adversely impact the City or nearby property owners?   No.   
 
Will the activity cause/create health or safety risks or damage to other property?  No.  
 
Will the event require local or state permits, or violate any federal, state or municipal 
laws? No 
 
What measures will be taken to prevent/minimize adverse impacts or affects?  Leander 
Police and PARD will provide security and traffic control. 
 
Proof of Insurance:  The City of Leander is insured through the Texas Municipal League.  
 

Stephen Bosak    September 3, 2015 
Parks & Recreation Director    Date 
 
 



  AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 03, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case #15-Z-017: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land located at 6301 N. Bagdad 
Road; 11.0959 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R031629.  
Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family 
Rural).  The applicant is proposing to zone the property to SFU-2-
B (Single-Family Urban), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Josh Becker on behalf of Richard A. Alley.  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request at the August 
14, 2015 meeting.  The City Council unanimously approved the 
request at the August 20, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 08/24/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-017 

DIAMOND D RANCH 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Richard Alley 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
 
Proposed Zoning: SFU-2-B 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 6301 N. Bagdad Rd and includes approximately 

11.0 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Developed Property Zoned for Single-Family (Benbrook 
Ranch Subdivision) 

EAST SFU-2-B Developed Property Zoned for Single-Family (Estates of 
North Creek Ranch Subdivision 

SOUTH SFU-2-B Developed Property Zoned for Single-Family (Estates of 
North Creek Ranch Subdivision 

WEST SFU-2-B Developed Property Zoned for Single-Family (North Creek 
Subdivision) 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

SFU – SINGLE FAMILY URBAN:   
Features:  7,200 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  Development of single-family detached dwellings on moderate urban standard sized lots 

and for other compatible and complimentary uses. The purpose of this component is to provide 
regulations to maintain and protect the City's single-family residences and neighborhoods in 
areas with moderate lot sizes.  Such components are generally intended to offer variety in 
housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods. 

 
SITE COMPONENTS:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS:   

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
 

  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for the coordinated and diverse growth and physical expansion of the City of 

Leander. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 

 
 
 

ANALYSIS: 
The applicant has submitted a request for a zoning change from SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
to SFU-2-B (Single-Family Urban) to allow for a single-family development at this location.  
This property is adjacent to the developed Benbrook Ranch Subdivision to the north, the 
developed Estates of North Creek Subdivision to the east and south, and the developed North 
Creek Subdivision to the west.  
 
This property was annexed into the City on December 21, 2006 and was established as an 
Interim SFR-1-B zoned district.   
 
This property is currently designated as residential neighborhood as part of the Future Land Use 
Plan.  Residential neighborhoods are the predominate land use within the City and the ETJ.  
Neighborhoods are primarily composed of single-family detached housing and include other 
compatible uses including parks, schools, and places of worship.  Neighborhoods of this area of 
the City are of moderate density due to the availability of sewer and water infrastructure. 
 
The proposed SFU use component permits detached dwellings on medium sized lots that are a 
minimum of sixty feet wide.  The intent of this use component is to offer a variety of housing 
opportunities and to maintain and protect the City’s single-family neighborhoods.  A six foot 
masonry wall and a ten foot landscape lot will be required for single-family lots located adjacent 
to N. Bagdad Rd. 
 
The Type 2 site component is intended to be paired with residential districts and is the standard 
site component paired with residential use components. Accessory buildings and structures are 
permitted providing that their total gross floor area square footage is not greater than ten percent 
of the gross floor area of the primary building, or 120 square feet; whichever is greater. 
 
The Type B architectural component requires that all structures are 85% masonry on the first 
story and 50% masonry on each additional story thereafter. Building height is limited to a 
maximum of 35 ft and includes a minimum of four design features for buildings. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the requested SFU-2-B district.  This zoning district provides for 
the development of compatible residential use along N. Bagdad Rd.  The request meets the intent 
statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

3 
 



2A

3B

5D

2A

3A

3A

5D

CR 279

OLD 2243 WEST

RANCHERO RD

N BAGDAD RD

RI
VE

RW
AY

 LN

SOUTH BROOK DR

HALSEY DR

WH
ITL

EY
 D

R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

WATERFALL AVE

EA
GL

EC
RE

EK
 D

R

NORTH CREEK BLVD

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

BU
RG

ES
S 

DR

BA
RC

LA
Y 

DR

HE
ND

ER
SO

N 
DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

SP
AR

KL
IN

G 
BR

OO
K 

LN

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

EN
CI

NI
TA

 D
R

CL
EA

RC
RE

EK
 D

R

SOUTHCREEK DR

ENCANTO DR

BA
TT

LE
CR

EE
K 

LN

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

RED RIVER LN

CO
UL

EE
 D

R

ESCONDIDO DR

RUBLES CT

LITTLECREEK LN

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

BACH DR

PECOS CV

MIDDLE BROOK DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-017
Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Diamond D Ranch

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood 
Center Node

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Town
Center
Node



CR 279

RANCHERO RD

HALSEY DR

SOUTH BROOK DR
WH

ITL
EY

 D
R

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

N 
BA

GD
AD

 R
D

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

RI
VE

RW
AY

 LN

BU
RG

ES
S D

R

BA
RC

LA
Y D

R

WATERFALL AVE

EA
GL

EC
RE

EK
 D

R

HE
ND

ER
SO

N 
DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN

EN
CI

NI
TA

 D
R

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

ES
TA

NC
IA 

WA
Y

RED RIVER LN

SP
AR

KL
IN

G 
BR

OO
K L

N

CO
UL

EE
 D

R

ES
CO

ND
ID

O 
DR

RIO BRAVO LOOP

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

LOS ROBLES RD

CAMINO ALTO DR

MOUNTAIN SPRING LN

BACH DR

CASITAS CT

MIDDLE BROOK DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-017 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Diamond D Ranch

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



CR 279

RANCHERO RD

HALSEY DR

SOUTH BROOK DRWH
ITL

EY
 D

R

N BAGDAD RD

RI
VE

RW
AY

 LN

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

BU
RG

ES
S 

DR

EA
GL

EC
RE

EK
 D

R

BA
RC

LA
Y 

DR

WATERFALL AVE

HE
ND

ER
SO

N 
DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

RA
NC

HO
 VI

EJ
O 

LN
LOS ROBLES RD

SP
AR

KL
IN

G 
BR

OO
K 

LN

CAMINO ALTO DR

EN
CI

NI
TA

 D
R

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

RED RIVER LN

CO
UL

EE
 D

R

ESCONDIDO DR

RIO BRAVO LOOP

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

BACH DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-017
Attachment #4
Proposed Zoning
Diamond D Ranch

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood
Center
Node

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed SFU-2-B

Town
Center
Node



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO # 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING OF A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO SFU-2-B (SINGLE-
FAMILY URBAN); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property”.  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 11.0959 acres, more or 
less, generally located 6301 N Bagdad Road, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A”, legally described as 11.0959 acres out of the Charles Cochran Survey, 
Abstract No. 134; identified by tax identification number R031782; more particularly described in 
document number 1998057033 recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to SFU-2-B (Single-Family 
Urban) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 20th day of August, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 3rd day of September, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



CR 279

RANCHERO RD

HALSEY DR

SOUTH BROOK DRW
HI

TL
EY

 D
R

N BAGDAD RD

RI
VE

RW
AY

 LN

RE
MI

NG
TO

N 
DR

NORTH CREEK BLVD

CL
AY

TO
N 

DR

BU
RG

ES
S 

DR

EA
GL

EC
RE

EK
 D

R

BA
RC

LA
Y 

DR

WATERFALL AVE

HE
ND

ER
SO

N 
DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

RA
NC

HO
 V

IE
JO

 LN
LOS ROBLES RD

SP
AR

KL
IN

G 
BR

OO
K 

LN

CAMINO ALTO DR

EN
CI

NI
TA

 D
R

ENCANTO DR

PA
MP

AS
 R

IC
AS

 D
R

ES
TA

NC
IA

 W
AY

SA
N 

VI
CE

NT
E 

DR

RED RIVER LN

CO
UL

EE
 D

R

ESCONDIDO DR

RIO BRAVO LOOP

RUBLES CT

CA
MI

NO
 R

EA
L D

R

BACH DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

MIDDLE BROOK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-017

Exhibit A
Zoning Map
Diamond D Ranch

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Neighborhood
Center
Node

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Town
Center
Node



AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 
Executive Summary 

September 3, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:   Consider a Variance to Article 8.04, Noise, of the Leander 
Code of Ordinances for Alpha Paving Industries, LLC for pavement repairs of the Crystal 
Falls Parkway and Bagdad Road Intersection. 
 
Background:  The City’s noise ordinance limits construction-generated noises to the 
hours of 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m.  Any modification to this operating time period requires 
approval from City Council.  Alpha Paving has requested a variance to the noise 
ordinance for paving repairs of the Crystal Falls Parkway and Bagdad Road Intersection 
between hours of 9:00 pm to 7:00 am.  The work is scheduled for Monday and Tuesday, 
September 28th and 29th, but Alpha Paving is requesting five days beginning 9/27/2015 
(Sunday) through 10/3/2015 (Saturday), in case of unforeseen circumstances.  Alpha 
Paving will provide traffic controls to detour traffic around the work area to minimize 
delays.  Also, Public Works crews will set-up trailer mounted message boards in advance 
warning drivers to avoid the intersection during construction.    
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E, Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  Not Applicable 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests approval of the variance to Article 8.04 of the Leander 
Code of Ordinances for the above dates and times. 
 
Attachments:   Exhibit – Aerial View of Intersection 
 
Prepared by:   Patrick A. Womack, P.E, Public Works Director 
 



S BAGDAD RD

CR
YS

TA
L 

FA
LL

S 
PK

W
Y

1241
Sq Yards

Ë
40

Feet

Exhibit A

Limits of Construction



AGENDA ITEM # 11 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 03, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Subdivision Case 15-CP-001:  Hold a public hearing and consider 

action on the Deerbrooke Concept Plan, for 168.06 acres more or 
less; WCAD Parcels R031696, R031697, R031695 and R392814, 
generally located to the northeast of the intersection of CR 279 and 
Collaborative Way, to the north of the Savanna Ranch Subdivision, 
Leander, Williamson County Texas.   

 
Background: This request is the first step in the subdivision process.  Pursuant to 

Section 212.005 of the Texas Local Government Code, approval 
by municipality is required since the concept plan satisfies the 
applicable regulations without requesting any variances.   

 
Origination: Applicant: Southwest Land Development Services (David 

Singleton) on behalf of Deerbrooke Austin, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the concept plan.  This concept plan 

includes approximately 750 single-family lots, 56.35 acres of 
greenbelt/water quality, and 6.24 acres of parkland and amenity 
areas.   This proposal meets all of the requirements of the 
Subdivision Ordinance.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval of the request at the August 
27, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachment:  1.  Concept Plan 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 08/27/2015 
 
  



CivilE, LLC
8240 N. Mopac Expy
Suite 125
Austin, TX  78759

Office: 512-402-6878
Fax: 512-402-6947

Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-15581

  



N



































AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 03, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-019: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a portion of a parcel of land located at 804 
Bagdad Road for 4.8 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R314038  
Currently, the property is zoned GC-3-C (General Commercial).  
The applicant is proposing to zone the property to MF-2-A (Multi-
Family), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Josh Becker on behalf of E & L Properties, LTD. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The applicant has postponed this request. 
 
Attachments: 1.   Postponement Letter 
  
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 08/21/2015 
 



1

Robin Griffin

From: Josh Becker [joshdbecker@gmail.com]
Sent: Thursday, August 20, 2015 10:12 PM
To: Martin Siwek; Robin Griffin; Ellen Pizalate
Subject: Postponing Re-Zone Request

To whom it may concern: 
 
After speaking with Martin about staffs recommendations for the property located at 2804 Bagdad Rd in 
Leander, we would like to request the postponement of Zoning Case 15-Z-019 until we have the opportunity to 
explore what option will yield the most suitable result for the city and the landowner. 
 
If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to give me a call. 
 
Sincerely, 
Josh Becker 
512-909-4744 





AGENDA ITEM # 13 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 03, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-020: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land generally located to the 
southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad 
Road/CR 279; 1.508 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R476367.  
Currently, the property is zoned LC-2-B (Local Commercial). The 
applicant is proposing to zone the property to LC-3-B, Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Danny Martin on behalf of JSL Commercial 

Investments, LLC. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & 

Zoning Commission recommended denial of the request at the 
August 27, 2015 meeting with a four to two vote (Commissioners 
Wixon and Anderson opposing). 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
 7. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission August 27, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 08/27/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-020 

BENBROOK RANCH COMMERCIAL 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: JSL Commercial Investments, LLC. 
 
Current Zoning: LC-2-B (Local Commercial) 
    
Proposed Zoning: LC-3-B (Local Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located on the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel 

Parkway and Bagdad Road/CR 279 and is approximately 1.508 acres in 
size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH LC-2-B Undeveloped land zoned for local commercial uses 

EAST LC-2-B 
SFU-2-B 

Undeveloped land zoned for local office 
Established Single-Family Homes (Benbrook Ranch) 

SOUTH LC-2-B Undeveloped land zoned for local commercial uses 

WEST GC-3-B Undeveloped land zoned for general commercial uses 
        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   
Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 

grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 5:00 
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 3:   
Features:  Accessory buildings up to 30% of primary building; accessory dwellings; drive-thru 

service; limited outdoor display and storage; outdoor fueling and washing of vehicles; 
overhead service doors, no indoor parking required. 

Intent:   
(1) A Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use components where 

adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition. 
(2) This component is intended to be utilized with residential components where accessory dwellings 

or additional accessory structures are appropriate and are not provided for in the Type 1 or 2 site 
components. 

(3) This component is intended to be combined with LO, LC, GC, HC and HI components where it is 
appropriate to utilize the outdoor site area for outdoor fuel sales, limited outdoor display and 
storage or accessory buildings. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
  
  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 Establish high standards for development. 
 The Community Center land use node is intended to be located at the intersections of 

arterial streets or arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half 
mile in diameter and incorporate approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for 
commercial, retail and office uses that primarily serve residents within the community.  
These areas are also intended for medium density multi-family and high density single-
family housing. Development within these nodes should be integrated through internal 
streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential 
neighborhoods. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting the LC-3-B (Local Commercial) district in order to allow for a 
convenience store with fuel sales.  The properties located to the north, west, and south are zoned 
for general commercial and local commercial uses.  The property to the east is currently 
developed as part of the Benbrook Ranch subdivision.   
 
The LC use component permits all uses allowed in the LO (Local Office) use component as well 
as retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, and convenience stores.  The hours of operation: 
are limited to 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday through Thursday and 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. 
Friday and Saturday.  The intent of the use component is to allow for uses that are limited in 
scale and offer services to neighboring residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by 
a collector or higher classification street.  In this case, access is provided by San Gabriel Pkwy 
and Bagdad Road. 
 
The current Type 2 site component does not permit outdoor storage or display, outdoor 
entertainment, or outdoor fueling.  The change to a Type 3 site component will permit outdoor 
fuel sales.  The table below demonstrates the differences between the two site components. 
 
 

Site Standards Type 2 Type 3 

Outdoor Display and Storage Not Permitted 30% of gross floor area 
of primary structure 

Use of Overhead Commercial 
Service Doors Not Permitted Permitted 

Outdoor Fueling Not Permitted Permitted 

Outdoor Container Storage Not Permitted 20% of gross floor area 
of primary structure 

 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

The Type B architectural component requires at least eight-five (85%) of the exterior surface 
area of the first story walls are masonry and fifty (50%) of all other stories are masonry.  This 
architectural component also requires a minimum of four design features.  The Type A 
architectural component requires at least eight-five (85%) of the exterior surface area walls are 
masonry and that there are a minimum of five design features.  This component is intended to 
provide high building standards and ensure compatibility between non-residential and residential 
uses. 
 
This property is located within a Community Center Node as identified by the Future Land Use 
Map.  This land use node is intended to be located at the intersections of arterial streets or 
arterials and major collectors.  These nodes are approximately one half mile in diameter and 
incorporate approximately 125 acres.  These areas are intended for commercial, retail and office 
uses that primarily serve residents within the community.  These areas are also intended for 
medium density multi-family and high density single-family housing. Development within these 
nodes should be integrated through internal streets and should provide pedestrian and bicycle 
connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
 
All nodes designated by the Future Land 
Use Plan seek to have the most intense 
development closest to the center of the 
node, and to have reduction in intensity of 
development as it moves out from the 
center of those nodes.  The graph to the 
right shows the target mix of land uses 
within the Community Center Node.  
 
 
 
 
 
The existing land use mix does not meet 
the target mix shown in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Currently, the 
predominant land use is community 
commercial/retail.  The proposed zoning 
change does not change the existing land 
use mix since only the site component is 
proposed to change.  The current land use 
mix is shown in the graph to the right. 
 
 
  

4 
 

30% 

15% 
20% 

35% 

Community Center  
Target Land Use Mix 

Community
Commercial/Retail
Office

Multi-Family

High Density Single-
Family

66% 

0% 
0% 

5% 

29% 

Community Center  
Existing Land Use Mix  

Community
Commercial/Retail
Office

Multi-Family

High Density Single-
Family
Low Density Single-
Family



Attachment # 1                 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends denial of the requested LC-3-B district and approval of the LC-3-A district.  
The intent of the Type A architectural component is to provide for high quality developments 
and to be used for projects that are adjacent to established single-family neighborhoods or more 
restrictive areas.  The Type 3 site component is intended to be utilized with LO and LC use 
components where adjacent to less restricted districts to provide for a land use transition.  In this 
situation, the properties across Bagdad are less restricted districts. 
 
The requested zoning district meets the intent statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

5 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 23B

3B
CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR
W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GENTRY DR

MCCALLUM DR

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Benbrook Ranch Comm

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



3B

3B

CR 279

HA
LS

EY
 DR

COLLABORATIVE WAY

AIKEN DR

GENTRY DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

ARVADA DR

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR

WOLCOTT DR

HARTMAN DR

MATHESON DR

HE
NS

LE
Y D

R

TABERNASH DR

KERSEY DR

CH
IM

NE
Y 

DR
PI

TK
IN

 D
R

LA
NC

AS
TE

R 
DR

MCCALLUM DR

OL
NE

Y 
DR

LIT
TL

ET
ON

 D
R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  Attachment #3 Location Map - Benbrook Ranch Comm

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community
Center Node



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 23B

3B
CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR
W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GENTRY DR

MCCALLUM DR

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  Attachment #4 Proposed Zoning Map - Benbrook Ranch Comm

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed
LC-3-B



CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

MCCALLUM DR

WASHBURN DR

GENTRY DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Benbrook Ranch Commercial

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 6





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO # 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING OF A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
LC-2-B (LOCAL COMMERCIAL) TO LC-3-B (LOCAL COMMERCIAL); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 1.508 acres, more or 
less, generally located to the southeast of the intersection of San Gabriel Parkway and Bagdad 
Road/CR 279, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally 
described as 1.508 acres out of the Charles Cochran Survey, Abstract No. 134; identified by tax 
identification number R476367; more particularly described in document number 2014000042 
recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from LC-2-B (Local Commercial) to LC-2-B (Local Commercial) as shown 
in Exhibits “A” and “B”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of September, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 





! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 23B

3B
CR 279

LOGAN DR

DUNHILL DR
W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

GENTRY DR

MCCALLUM DR

WASHBURN DR

FLANAGAN DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-020  Exhibit B Benbrook Ranch Commercial

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

LC-3-B





AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 03, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-021: Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of a parcel of land located at 508 Municipal Drive; 
1.235 acres more or less; WCAD Parcel R036441.  Currently, the 
property is zoned TF-2-B (Two-Family).   The applicant is 
proposing to zone the property to LO-2-B (Local Office), Leander, 
Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Del Ray and Linda Sudderth. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of the request at the August 27, 2015 
meeting with a five to one vote (Commissioner Schwendenmann 
opposing). 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3.   Aerial Map 
 4. Proposed Zoning Map 
 5.   Letter of Intent 
 6. Ordinance 
 7. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission August 27, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 08/27/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-021 

508 MUNICIPAL DR 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Del Ray and Linda Sudderth. 
 
Current Zoning: TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
    
Proposed Zoning: LO-2-B (Local Office) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located ¼ mile from the southwest corner of the 

intersection of Municipal Dr and S. West Dr and is 1.235 acres more or 
less in size. 

 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU-2-B Developed Camacho Elementary School 

EAST TF-2-B Developed single family home 

SOUTH TF-2-B Developed single family home 

WEST TF-2-B Vacant property 
        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
USE COMPONENT:   

LO – LOCAL OFFICE:   
Features:  Office, assisted living, day care. Hours of operation: 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-

Thurs., 7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 
Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses which may be 

located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by a collector or 
higher classification street.  This component is intended to help provide for land use transitions 
from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   
(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 

meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 
  
  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Separate, and/or create transitions, or buffer areas between existing, conflicting or 

incompatible land uses. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
The applicant is requesting to zone the property from TF-2-B (Two Family) district to LO-2-B 
(Local Office) district.  The property is located approximately ¼ mile from the southwest corner 
of the intersection of Municipal Dr and S. West Dr.  Immediately north of this property is the 
newly constructed Camacho Elementary school. Constructed single family homes are to the east 
and south of the property. The property to the west is zoned MF-2-B (Multi-Family) and is 
presently vacant.  
 
The applicant’s property is within proximity to a Town Center Node. The Town Center land use 
node is intended to be located at the intersections of major arterials within the community.  
These nodes are approximately one mile in diameter and incorporate approximately 500 acres.  
These areas are intended for large scale commercial, retail and office uses that require locations 
with direct access to major arterials and that serve both the community and a larger trade area 
outside the city limits.  These areas are also intended for high density multi-family and single-
family housing.  Development within these nodes should be integrated through internal streets 
and should provide pedestrian and bicycle connections to adjacent residential neighborhoods. 
The most intense development activities are to be located in the center of these nodes, and 
transition to reduced intensity of land use as moving towards the periphery of these nodes. 
 
The intent statements of the Local Office Use Component from the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
speaks to permitting the development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses 
which may be located adjacent to residential neighborhoods. Access should be provided by a 
collector or higher classification street. This component is intended to help provide for land use 
transitions from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development.  
The hours of operation to the general public shall be between 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday 
through Thursday, and between 7:00 a.m. and 11:00 p.m. Friday and Saturday. 
 
The current Type 2 site component does not permit outdoor storage, display, or outdoor 
entertainment. 
 
 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

Site Standards Type 2 

Outdoor Display and Storage Not Permitted 

Entertainment Venues & Outdoor Facilities Not Permitted 

Use of Overhead Commercial Service Doors Not Permitted 

Outdoor Fueling Not Permitted 

Outdoor Animal Boarding Not Permitted 

Outdoor Container Storage Not Permitted 
 
 
The Type 2 Site Component would also limit buildings to 60,000 square feet of floor area and 
individual users to 40,000 square feet. 
 
The Type B architectural component requires at least 85% of the exterior surface area walls to be 
comprised of masonry for the first floor and 50% masonry is required on each additional story 
thereafter. The architectural component would require four design features for street facing 
façades.  This component is intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility 
between non-residential and residential uses. 
 
The Type A architectural component would require 85% masonry on all stories and five 
architectural design features for street facing façades. This component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends denial of the requested LO-2-B zoning district and recommends approval of 
the LO-2-A zoning district.  The LO use component is intended to provide a land use transition 
from more intense commercial districts or arterial streets to residential development, and a Type 
A architectural component would enhance the compatibility of the LO use component with the 
adjacent neighborhood.  This property fronts onto Municipal Dr. and would provide buffering 
from the Camacho Elementary School and City of Leander Public Works yard on the north side 
of Municipal Dr. Additionally, this property is located on a collector class street, and the use 
component may be placed adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  This use component would 
help to provide transition from a more intensely developed area of the City to a less developed 
residential community on the south side of Municipal Dr.  In addition, the proposed Type 2 site 
component restricts the size of the buildings and ensures that development is designed to a form 
and scale that is compatible with residential neighborhoods.  This request meets the intent 
statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

4 
 



5D

5D
5D

4C3A

3A

3A

4C

3A

4C

4C

S W
ES

T D
R

LION DR

W SOUTH ST

MUNICIPAL DR

ME
SA

 D
R

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

MASON ST

SHERRY DR

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

N 
W

ES
T D

R

BLUEBONNET TRL

WI
ND

MI
LL

 C
IR

DO
VE

 S
ON

G 
DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S T
RE

AS
UR

E O
AK

S 
DR

N 
TR

EA
SU

RE
 O

AK
S D

R

OAKLAND CV

AQUA BELL CV

DOVE SONG DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021     Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - 508 Municipal Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Town
Center
Node

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Townhome



S W
ES

T D
R

W SOUTH ST

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

ME
SA

 D
R

MASON ST

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

SHERRY DR

BROADE WAY

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

N 
WE

ST
 D

R

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

W BROADE ST

DO
VE

 SO
NG

 D
R

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

WI
ND

MI
LL

 C
IR

BLUEBONNET TRL
LEE DR

FRIENDSHIP CV

S T
RE

AS
UR

E 
OA

KS
 D

R

DEW DROP LN

OAKLAND CV
TA

BL
ER

OC
K 

CI
R

RED BUD CV

AQUA BELL C
V

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021 Attachment #3
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
508 Municipal Dr

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



W SOUTH ST

S W
ES

T D
R

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

CA
RO

L A
VE

ME
SA

 D
R

MASON ST

HORSESHOE DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

LEE DR

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

KA
TH

ER
IN

E 
WA

Y

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

WO
OD

LE
Y R

D

SHERRY DR

PO
WE

LL
 D

R

N 
W

ES
T D

R

EM
MA

 R
OS

E 
TR

L

BROADE WAY

DOVE SONG DR

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

WI
ND

MI
LL

 C
IR

BL
UE

BO
NN

ET
 TR

L

MA
CK

EN
ZIE

 W
AY

W BROADE ST

DEXTER DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S T
RE

AS
UR

E O
AK

S 
DR

OAKLAND CV

PARKHURST DR

RED BUD CV

LOGUE CV

AQUA BELL CV

MUNICIPAL DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200
Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021
Attachment #4
Proposed Zoning
508 Municipal Dr

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Proposed LO-2-B

Town
Center
Node



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 5



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO # 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING OF A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
SFU/MH (SINGLE-FAMILY URBAN/MANUFACTURED HOME) TO LO-
2-B (LOCAL OFFICE); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain portion of a parcel of land being 1.235 acres, more or 
less, located at 508 Municipal Drive, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described 
in Exhibit “A”, legally described as Lot 6A, Block A, Leander Heights Section 2 Replat (Lot 6, 
Block A Replat); identified by tax identification number R036441; more particularly described in 
document number 2004062764 recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property SFU/MH (Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home) to LO-2-B (Local 
office) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 3rd day of September, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 17th day of September, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



W SOUTH ST

S 
W

ES
T 

DR

LION DR

MUNICIPAL DR

CA
RO

L A
VE

ME
SA

 D
R

MASON ST

HORSESHOE DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

LEE DR

BA
NN

ER
 AV

E

KA
TH

ER
IN

E 
W

AY

BE
NT

 W
OO

D 
DR

W
OO

DL
EY

 R
D

SHERRY DR

PO
W

EL
L D

R

N 
W

ES
T D

R

EM
MA

 R
OS

E 
TR

L

BROADE WAY

DOVE SONG DR

FO
SS

IL 
TR

L

W
IN

DM
ILL

 C
IR

BL
UE

BO
NN

ET
 TR

L

MA
CK

EN
ZI

E 
WA

Y
W BROADE ST

DEXTER DR

PECAN GROVE DR

S 
TR

EA
SU

RE
 O

AK
S 

DR

OAKLAND CV

PARKHURST DR

RED BUD CV

LOGUE CV

AQUA BELL CV

MUNICIPAL DR

NO
RT

HE
RN

 TR
L

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-021      Exhibit A 508 Municipal Dr
SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 

SFL
SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF

LO 
LC
GC
HC
HI

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Town
Center
Node

! ! !
! ! !

! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! !
! ! ! PUD Mixed Use

! ! !

! ! ! PUD Multi-Family

! ! !
! ! !
! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

PUD Townhome







AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

 

 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 3, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consider Naming Library Conference Room C 
 
Background: A petition request to name Conference Room C at the Leander Public Library 
after former City Secretary, Betty Brown, has been received and reviewed by staff and the 
Leander Library Foundation.  The Library Foundation endorsed the request August 18th and the 
petition request meets requirements of the City Building & Facility Naming Policy. 
 
Betty Brown was Leander’s first City Secretary/Treasurer as a volunteer and after the first eight 
months of service she was paid a dollar a month for her service and continued as City 
Secretary/Treasurer until 1984. She was a member of a committee that petitioned to have the 
City incorporated in 1977 and she was a strong advocate for the City’s first library. After leaving 
the City she continued her career in public service as a Deputy City Clerk for the City of Austin 
and she recently retired from Bickerstaff Heath Delgado where she served as their Election 
Specialist. 
 
Betty Brown has been a resident of Leander since 1968.    
 
Financial Consideration: None 
  
Recommendation: It is respectfully recommended that the City Council name the Leander 
Public Library Conference Room C the “Betty Brown Community Room” in recognition of Ms. 
Brown’s service to our community. 
 
Attachments: Naming Request & Newspaper Articles, Petition, Background Information, Policy 
for Naming Buildings & Facilitieis 
 
Prepared by:  Stephen Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
 
 
 
 



POLICY FOR NAMING CITY BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 
Approved by the City Council August 6, 2015 

 
 
PURPOSE 

• To establish uniform procedures for naming City buildings and facilities. 
• To provide consistent guidelines for citizens, citizen groups and City staff. 
• To establish procedures for naming City buildings and facilities. 

 
PROCEDURES FOR NAMING CITY BUILDINGS & FACILITIES 
1. Written nominations to name a buildings or facilities shall be submitted to the City Manager.  The City 

Manager shall forward nominations to the City Council and/or the appropriate advisory board or 
commission for consideration, and to make a recommendation to the Council and to the City  
Secretary to verify that the signers are registered Leander voters. 

2. Written nominations shall include the following information: 
i) A petition signed by at least 50 registered City voters stating reasons for the proposed action. 

Petitions must clearly state the intent of the nomination and include printed names, signatures, 
addresses, zip codes and telephone numbers of each signer; 

ii) Evidence of community support;  
3. If the petition is referred to an advisory board or commission the naming nomination should be presented 

to the board/commission at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 
4. The board or commission shall: 

i) Review the nomination in accordance with the policy 
ii) Determine if there is a need to solicit further public input 
iii) Research, review and study supporting documentation 
iv) Through a majority vote agree on a recommendation and forward it to the Council. 

5. The naming process may also begin with a majority vote of a board or commission, or at the request of the 
Council. 

 
NAMING CRITERIA 
The recommended name shall meet at least one of the following criteria. 

1. Consideration may be given to geographic location, adjacent streets or subdivision name. 
2. Consideration may be given to prominent characteristics or physical features of the site (lake, river, 

creek, canyon or topography). 
3. Consideration may be given to a historic feature or event. 
4. Consideration may be given to naming the building or facility after a family, individual, or business that 

donated a significant portion of the property, or funds to construct the facility. 
5. Consideration may be given to the previous property owner if the property owner sells the property 

significantly below fair market value. The naming agreement should be negotiated at the time of 
purchase. 

6. Consideration may be given to honor individuals or businesses that have made significant or worthy 
contributions to the City of Leander or a prominent American who is or was a resident of Leander. 

7. City structures may be dedicated to the memory of worthy individuals through the placement of plaques 
without naming or renaming the entire structure. 

 
GENERAL CRITERIA 

1. Consideration must first be given to existing legal agreements or promises that were made when the 
building or facility was originally named. 

2. Buildings and facilities previously named for individuals should not be renamed. 
3. Buildings and facilities may be named for either deceased or living persons.   
4. Buildings and facilities shall not be given the same name as an existing school or public facility unless 

they are adjacent to an existing named school or public facility. 
5. Recommendations to name buildings and facilities should not be publicized until after receiving 

approval by the Council. 
6. This policy shall not be construed to limit authority of the City Council to name any city buildings or 

facilities at any time and under any conditions the Council deems appropriate.  
 





















Background of Betty Brown: 
 

• Has been a Leander citizen since Oct. 1968 
• 1977 - Served on committee to petition an election for the City of 

Leander to become incorporated 
• January 21, 1978 – City of Leander became incorporated and 

Betty Brown volunteered as the City Secretary/City Treasurer.  
The only other person who was a volunteer employee was C.D. 
Hill, Police Chief.   

• March 1978 – Betty Brown joined the Texas Municipal Clerks 
Certification Program and a third volunteer, Eileen Foley filled in 
when Betty was gone to seminars.  Betty received her Texas 
Municipal Clerks Certification in January 1982. 

• After 8 months of volunteering, Betty Brown, C.D. Hill, and Eileen 
Foley each received $1.00 for 8 months of work.  For many years 
the $1.00 bills were framed and hung in the lobby of city hall.   

• On Oct. 1, 1978, Betty Brown became a salaried employee of the 
City of Leander and remained the City Secretary/City Treasurer 
until May 1984 when she left to take the position of Deputy City 
Clerk for the City of Austin 

• The first City Council meeting was held in the volunteer Fire 
Station which is still standing (metal building behind city hall). 

• Betty Brown is still a citizen of Leander and recently retired from 
Bickerstaff Heath Delgado where she served as their Election 
Specialist    









AGENDA ITEM #16a 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 3, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of a Development, ETJ Release, and Consent Agreement for the 
Caughfield Tract. 
 
Background: The City received a petition for the creation of a municipal utility district (MUD) on 
approximately 186.71 acres known as the Caughfield tract.  The Texas legislature authorized 
the creation of the MUD (Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 33) subject to the City 
of Leander granting its consent. 
 
The property lies within an area that is subject to an agreement between the City of Leander 
and the City of Liberty Hill that allows Liberty Hill to apply its development regulations.   
 
The agreement provides for the developer to dedicate easements necessary for the installation 
of a regional waste-water force-main through the property and for the future construction of the 
South San Gabriel River Trail along the property's San Gabriel River frontage.  Additionally, the 
agreement provides for the developer to provide street access to the City's recently purchased 
park property on the San Gabriel River and to stub water, wastewater and reuse water lines to 
the park property.  The developer also agrees to align Arterial A1 on the property with its 
western terminus on the Wedemeyer property and extend Arterial A1 through the property to 
U.S. 183. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Development and Consent Agreement. 
 
Attachments:  

1. Agreement with exhibits  
2. Location map 

 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

DEVELOPMENT, ETJ RELEASE, AND CONSENT AGREEMENT  
FOR THE CAUGHFIELD TRACT 

THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON 

This Development, ETJ Release, and Consent Agreement (this “Agreement”) is between the City 
of Leander, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation (“Leander”), and Caughfield Ranch, Ltd., 
a Texas limited partnership, or its permitted assigns (the “Landowner”).  Upon final creation 
of Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 33 (the “District”), as authorized under the 
authority of Chapter 7959, Subtitle F, Title 6, Texas Special District Laws (“the “Enabling 
Legislation”), the District must join in this Agreement and agree to be bound by its terms, 
conditions, and provisions.  Leander, the Landowner, and the District, as applicable, are 
sometimes referred to individually herein as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

INTRODUCTION 

The Landowner has petitioned Leander for its consent to the creation of the District over 
the approximately 186.71 acres of land more particularly described on the attached Exhibit “A” 
(the “Property”).  The Property is presently located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction 
(“ETJ”) of Leander and the Enabling Legislation requires the consent of the municipality within 
whose extraterritorial jurisdiction the Property is located to the creation of the District.  
Pursuant to Ordinance No. ________ (the “Consent Ordinance”), adopted concurrently with 
the approval of this Agreement, the Leander City Council has granted its consent to the creation 
of the District and the inclusion of the Property in the District.  As a condition to such consent 
and Leander’s other agreements set forth herein, Leander also has required that the Landowner 
and, at the organizational meeting of its Board of Directors, the District, enter into this 
Agreement. 

The Property will be developed as part of a master-planned, mixed-use community 
proposed to be known as “Caughfield” (the “Project”).  The Project includes approximately 
416.80 acres of land located within the ETJ of the City of Liberty Hill (the “Liberty Hill ETJ 
Land”) and will ultimately include commercial and residential uses, together with park, 
recreational and other facilities to serve the community.  The Property is not currently served 
by water, wastewater and drainage facilities; roads; or parks and recreational facilities.   

Leander and the City of Liberty Hill (“Liberty Hill”) have previously entered into an 
Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for Urban Planning, Watershed Protection and the Release of 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction dated effective as of October 5, 2006 (the “Interlocal Agreement”) 
under which Liberty Hill and Leander agreed that Liberty Hill may plan municipal services and 
approve platting and development of certain land subject to the Interlocal Agreement.  

The Landowner and Liberty Hill have previously entered that certain “Agreement 
Regarding Consent to Creation and Operation of Municipal Utility Districts” dated August 25, 
2014, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the “Liberty Hill Consent Agreement”) 
which sets forth certain agreements regarding the development of the Liberty Hill ETJ Land and 
the operation of municipal utility districts created thereunder that will apply at such time as the 
Property is accepted into Liberty Hill’s ETJ. 

{W0661853.18} 1 8/28/2015 



 

The Parties desire to cooperate with respect to the extension of Leander’s wastewater 
system through the Property; the extension of water, wastewater, and reuse water lines to the 
Park Tract, herein defined; access to the Park Tract through the Project; dedication of land for 
the portion of the San Gabriel River Trail, herein defined, that lies within the Property (the 
“Trail Tract”, herein defined), and access to the Trail Tract. Leander intends to develop the Park 
Tract as a public park and sports fields.  It benefits the Landowner and the District to cooperate 
with Leander regarding the location of the Park Infrastructure (as defined in Section 4.05), the 
Park Access (as defined in Section 4.04), the force main easement, the Trail Tract, and the 
temporary construction easements described herein so that the location of such facilities and 
easements is compatible with the proposed development.  The eventual development of the 
Park Tract and the San Gabriel River Trail will enhance the value of the Project and increase 
public recreation amenities available to residents of the Project. 

Therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. 
GENERAL 

1.01 Recitals Incorporated.  The recitals contained in the Introduction are incorporated 
herein and made a part of this Agreement for all purposes. 

1.02 Definitions.  In addition to the terms defined in the Introduction, the following terms, 
when used in this Agreement, will have the meanings indicated below. 

Applicable City Rules:  means the municipal ordinances and duly adopted regulations 
that are applicable to development of the Property, subject to Section 4.10. 

Applicable Regulations:  means federal, state, and county laws, rules and regulations, 
including environmental regulations, as they exist from time to time and are applicable to the 
Property, and the Applicable City Rules. 

Arterial A-1: means the major arterial road identified as A-1 on the Leander 
Transportation Plan. 

Bonds: means bonds, notes, and other indebtedness issued by the District under Article 
III of this Agreement.  

CCN:  means a certificate of convenience and necessity granted pursuant to Chapter 13, 
Texas Water Code, as amended. 

Chisholm Trail SUD or CTSUD:  means the Chisholm Trail Special Utility District, a 
special utility district governed by Chapters 49 and 65 of the Texas Water Code, or its successor. 

City Charter:  means Leander’s City Charter. 

Concept Plan:  means the Concept Plan for the Project attached as Exhibit “B”, as 
amended from time to time. 

Effective Date:  means the date this Agreement is approved by the Leander City Council. 

{W0661853.18} 2 8/28/2015 



 

Park Access: has the meaning set forth in Section 4.04, below. 

Park Tract: means the property owned by Leander located adjacent to the Liberty Hill 
ETJ Land, being more particularly shown and described in Exhibit “C”. 

Phase 4: means the fourth phase of the Project; provided that, if the fourth phase of the 
Project does not include the land upon which the Park Access or the Park Infrastructure will be 
constructed, Phase 4 shall mean the phase of the Project that includes the land upon which the 
Park Access or the Park Infrastructure will be located. 

Project Approvals:  All approvals, variances, waivers and exceptions to the Applicable City 
Rules approved by Leander for the development of the Property and any additional restrictions or 
regulations agreed to by the Landowner in writing, including the Concept Plan and the 
regulations set forth on the attached Exhibit “D”, and any other future regulatory approvals, 
including plat approval, if applicable, as provided in Section 4.10. 

PUC: means the Public Utility Commission, or its successor agency. 

San Gabriel River Trail:  means the trail identified as the “San Gabriel River Trail” 
adjacent to the South San Gabriel River shown on Leander’s Transportation Plan. 

TCEQ:  means the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, or its successor agency. 

Trail Tract:  means the portion of the Property described on the attached Exhibit “E”.   

Wholesale Wastewater Agreement:  means the Wholesale Wastewater Service 
Agreement between the City of Leander and the City of Liberty Hill dated effective June 4, 2015. 

1.03 Acknowledgement of Consideration.  The terms, covenants and provisions 
contained in this Agreement constitute good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged by the Parties.  Leander acknowledges the Landowner will, during the 
term of this Agreement, proceed with the development of the Property in reliance upon the terms 
of this Agreement. The Landowner and District acknowledge that Leander will proceed with 
plans for the extension of Leander’s wastewater infrastructure through the Property and the 
development of the Park Tract and the San Gabriel River Trail in reliance upon the terms of this 
Agreement. 

1.04 Authority. This Agreement is entered into, in part, under the City Charter and the 
statutory authority of Section 212.172 of the Texas Local Government Code, which authorizes a 
city to make written contracts with the owners of land establishing lawful terms and 
considerations that the parties agree to be reasonable, appropriate, and not unduly restrictive of 
business activities.  

ARTICLE II. 
MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

2.01 Consent to Creation of District.  The Landowner has filed a petition, in accordance 
with Section 54.016 of the Texas Water Code and Section 42.042 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, for creation of the District.  Leander has approved the Consent Ordinance consenting to 
the creation of the District and the inclusion of the Property within the District, subject to the 
terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement.  The District will be authorized to 
construct, finance and issue bonds for wastewater system infrastructure and waterworks system 

{W0661853.18} 3 8/28/2015 



 

infrastructure; road system infrastructure; drainage, water quality and storm water control 
infrastructure; and parks and recreational facilities and to finance and issue Bonds for such 
purposes as well as to pay other costs and expenses permitted pursuant to the Enabling 
Legislation and/or Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, as provided in Section 3.01.   

2.02 Future Annexation by City. 

a. The creation of the District and Leander’s consent thereto are for the purposes of 
promoting the orderly development of and extension of utility services to the Property. 

b. In furtherance of the purposes of this Agreement, the Landowner agrees, on 
behalf of itself and its successors and assigns and, upon the District’s joinder in this Agreement, 
it will covenant and agree, to the extent allowed by law, that, except with the written consent of 
the City Council of the city within whose ETJ the Property is located, it will not: (1) seek or 
support any effort to incorporate any of the Property, or any part thereof; or (2) advocate the 
circulation or signing of, or sign, join in, or direct to be signed, any petition seeking to 
incorporate any of the Property, or to include any of the Property within any incorporated entity 
other than such city. 

c. The Landowner and District further agree to support and cooperate with the city 
in whose ETJ the Property is located in the orderly annexation of the Property, subject to the 
terms of this Agreement.  Such city retains the unilateral discretion to decide when and whether 
to annex the Property and to dissolve the District; provided, however, that none of the Property 
may be annexed earlier than (i) 25 years from the Effective Date or (ii) such time as at least 90% 
by dollar amount of the total facilities for which the District’s Bonds have been authorized have 
been constructed, whichever occurs first.  Upon annexation of the District as provided above, 
the District will be dissolved on the date and in the manner specified in the City ordinance 
completing such annexation, but in no event more than ninety (90) days after the effective date 
of such annexation.  The District will not enter into any developer reimbursement agreements 
or agreements for new projects or extraordinary expenses, except as necessary for continued 
operation and maintenance of existing District facilities, after publication of the first notice of a 
proposed annexation authorized under this Subsection provided that the City thereafter 
proceeds with annexation of the Property in accordance with the notice.  The District further 
agrees that any agreements it enters into in violation of the foregoing prohibition will be void.  

2.03 Filing of Information.   

a. The District will file a copy of its annual audit and a copy of its approved budget 
for each fiscal year showing projected expenses and revenues with the City Secretary and the City 
Manager of the city within whose ETJ the District is located within 30 days after approval by the 
District’s Board of Directors.  

b. Within 30 days after the date of its confirmation election, the District will file, in 
the real property records of Williamson County, a notice in the form required by Section 49.452 
of the Texas Water Code that includes notice that the city in whose ETJ the Property is located 
has the authority to annex the District subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement. 

c. The Landowner and the District agree not to contest the annexation of the 
Property provided that the annexation is in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  

2.04 Definition of “City”; Conflicts.  Upon transfer of the Property from Leander’s ETJ 
to Liberty Hill’s ETJ, the term “city” when used in Section 2.02(b) and (c) and Section 2.03 shall 

{W0661853.18} 4 8/28/2015 



 

refer to Liberty Hill and, if there is any conflict between the provisions of Sections 2.02 and 2.03 
of this Agreement and the provisions of any consent agreement between Liberty Hill and the 
Landowner regarding annexation of the District or required filings, the provisions of the 
agreement between the Landowner and Liberty Hill will control.  The transfer of the Property to 
Liberty Hill’s ETJ will not affect the Landowner’s obligations to Leander under other provisions 
of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE III. 
FINANCIAL 

3.01 Authority to Issue Bonds.  The District will have the authority to issue Bonds (other 
than refunding Bonds) for the following purposes only: 

a. the purchase, construction, acquisition, repair, extension, and improvement of 
land, easements, works, improvements, facilities, plants, equipment, and appliances, undivided 
interests in facilities, and capacity (including capacity interests represented by the payment of 
impact fees) and/or contract rights, necessary to: 

(i) provide a water supply for municipal uses, domestic uses, and commercial 
purposes; 

(ii) collect, transport, process, dispose of, and control all domestic, industrial, 
or communal wastes whether in fluid, solid, or composite state;  

(iii) gather, conduct, divert, and control local storm water or other local 
harmful excesses of water in the District;  

(iv) design, acquire, construct, finance and convey thoroughfares and arterial 
and collector roads as authorized pursuant to §54.234 of the Texas Water 
Code; and 

(v) develop and maintain park and recreational facilities as authorized by 
Subchapter N of Chapter 49 and of the Texas Water Code. 

b. For other costs and expenses permitted under the Enabling Legislation and/or 
Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code.   

c. Except as otherwise permitted by applicable law, a District may reimburse the 
Landowner in amounts and for purposes only as authorized by TCEQ rules and regulations or the 
Enabling Legislation. 

3.02 Terms and Conditions of District Bonds. 

a. Bonds, including refunding Bonds, issued by the District shall, unless otherwise 
agreed to by the city in whose ETJ the Property is located, comply with the following 
requirements, provided that such requirements do not generally render the Bonds 
unmarketable: 

(i) The Bonds shall be issued in series with a minimum limit on each series of 
Bonds of $1,000,000, unless the series in question is the last issue of 
Bonds to be issued by the District; 

{W0661853.18} 5 8/28/2015 



 

(ii) Bonds or notes for financing District facilities must be amortized over a 
period of time that does not exceed twenty-five (25) years from the date of 
issuance;   

(iii) The Bonds (other than refunding Bonds and Bonds sold to a federal or 
state agency) shall only be sold after the taking of public bids therefor, and 
no Bonds shall be sold for less than ninety-seven percent (97%) of par, 
provided that the net effective interest rate on Bonds so sold, taking into 
account any discount or premium as well as the interest rate borne by such 
Bonds, shall not exceed 3% above the highest average interest rate 
reported by the Daily Bond Buyer in its weekly “20 Bond Index” during the 
30-day period next preceding the date notice of the sale of the Bonds is 
given (or, if the Daily Bond Buyer ceases to exist, a comparable publication 
reporting average bond interest rates); 

(iv) The District shall reserve the right to redeem each series of its Bonds at 
any time no later than the tenth (10th) anniversary of the date of issuance, 
without premium; 

(v) No variable rate Bonds shall be issued by the District without City 
approval; 

(vi) The first series of Bonds shall be issued by the District not later than the 
14th anniversary of the Effective Date.  The last series of Bonds shall be 
issued by the District not later than the 20th anniversary of the Effective 
Date. 

3.03 Notice to City.  Except for Bonds which are subject to the notice provisions of Sections 
3.04 or 3.05, or refunding bonds issued pursuant to Section 3.07, including bond anticipation 
notes and revenue notes, the District may issue Bonds only after notifying Leander of its 
intention to do so at least thirty (30) days prior to the anticipated date of execution of the 
proposed bond or note purchase agreement. 

3.04 Notice of Bond Sale.  At least 30 days before submission of an application for the 
approval of the District's issuance of any Bonds to the TCEQ, the District will deliver a notice to 
Leander containing: (a) the amount of Bonds being proposed for issuance; (b) a description of 
the projects to be funded by the Bonds; and (c) the date that the Bonds are proposed to finally 
mature and be paid in full.  For any refunding Bonds not subject to review or approval described 
in Section 3.07, at least seven days before submission of an application for approval of the 
issuance of the Bonds to the Attorney General, the District will deliver a notice to Leander 
containing (a) the amount of the Bonds being proposed for issuance; (b) a description of Bonds 
to be refunded; and (c) the expected debt service savings. 

3.05 Submittal of Bond Application.  No later than five days after the filing of any bond 
application with TCEQ, the District will provide the application to Leander.  Leander may object 
to any bond issue if the Landowner or District is otherwise in default with respect to any of the 
Landowner’s or the District’s obligations to Leander under this Agreement (a "City Objection''). 

3.06 Bond Objections.  Any City Objection must (a) be in writing; (b) be given to the 
District within 30 days from Leander’s receipt of District's notice under Section 3.03 or 3.04 of 
this Agreement to be timely made (as used herein); (c) be signed by the City Manager or Finance 

{W0661853.18} 6 8/28/2015 



 

Director of Leander; and (d) specifically identify the non-compliance or default, including any 
failure by the Landowner or District to comply with Sections 4.01, 4.04, 4.05 or 4.06 of this 
Agreement.  If a City Objection is timely made, Leander and the District will use good faith 
efforts to resolve the City Objection within a reasonable time, and the District will not proceed 
with the sale of the Bonds to which the City Objection applies until the City Objection has been 
cured or waived.  If a City Objection is not timely made, the District may proceed with the sale of 
the Bonds without needing to resolve any City Objection.  The District agrees to include, in each 
application to the TCEQ for the approval of the issuance of Bonds, a copy of this Agreement.  
Leander acknowledges that the District may be required to provide evidence of compliance with 
this Section at the time of the sale of its Bonds; therefore, Leander agrees that the City Manager 
will be authorized to and will provide written confirmation to the District that Leander raises no 
objections promptly upon the District’s request. 

3.07 Sale of Bonds or Notes.  The District shall proceed to obtain the necessary 
authorization for issuance of its Bonds for the financing of the purchase or construction of its 
park, road, water, wastewater and drainage facilities prior to or simultaneously with the issuance 
of Bonds for any other purposes.  Anything in this Article to the contrary notwithstanding, no 
Leander review or approval shall be required in connection with: (a) an advance Bond refunding 
which (1) has a final maturity no longer than the final maturity on the refunded Bonds, (2) shall 
achieve a net present value savings of at least three percent (3%), and (3) has savings which are 
substantially or fairly uniform over each maturity of Bonds being refunded; or (b) any current 
Bond refunding which (1) has a final maturity no longer than the final maturity on the refunded 
Bonds, (2) shall achieve a net present value savings, and (3) has savings which are substantially 
or fairly uniform over each maturity of Bonds being refunded; however, the District must deliver 
a certificate from its financial advisor that demonstrates that the proposed refunding will comply 
with this Section to Leander at least three business days before execution of the purchase 
agreement for the refunding and must deliver evidence of its compliance with the requirements 
of this Section to Leander within three business days after the execution of the purchase 
agreement for the refunding.  It is specifically agreed that a District's Bonds, when issued, may 
be secured by a pledge of the District's taxes and/or revenues, as required by market conditions 
at the time of issuance. 

3.08 Official Statements.  Within 30 days after a District closes the sale of any series of 
Bonds, the District will deliver a copy of the final official statement for such Bonds to Leander.  
If Leander requests any additional information regarding the District's Bonds, the District will 
promptly provide such information as it has in its files to Leander at no cost to Leander, but the 
District will not be required to create any additional schedules or information that is not already 
available.  

3.09 Effect of Transfer.  If, after the transfer of the Property to the ETJ of Liberty Hill, 
there is any conflict between the provisions of this Article III and the provisions of any consent 
agreement between Liberty Hill and the Landowner relating to the District’s bonding authority 
or approval process, the terms of the agreement between Liberty Hill and the Landowner will 
control as between Liberty Hill and the Landowner and the District; provided, however, that, as 
among Leander, the Landowner, and the District, Sections 3.03 through 3.06 shall remain in full 
force and effect; Leander will be provided the notices and information and shall have the right to 
object to the issuance of Bonds in accordance with Sections 3.03 through 3.06 if the Landowner 
or the District is not in compliance with any obligation to Leander under this Agreement; and the 
District may not issue Bonds until any City Objection raised by Leander is resolved or waived.  
Except as otherwise provided herein, the transfer of the Property to Liberty Hill’s ETJ will not 
affect the Landowner’s and the District’s obligations to Leander under any other provisions of 

{W0661853.18} 7 8/28/2015 



 

this Agreement and such obligations shall remain in full force and effect and may not be 
modified without Leander’s written consent. 

ARTICLE IV. 
DEVELOPMENT 

4.01 Arterial A-1.  The Landowner agrees to (a) align the terminus of Arterial A-1 at the 
eastern boundary of the Property with the terminus of Arterial A-1 on the property abutting the 
eastern boundary of the Property and (b) construct Arterial A-1 on the Property along the 
alignment shown on Williamson County’s roadway plan and shown on the attached Exhibit 
“F”.  The Landowner shall provide Leander with a copy of the construction plans for the phase 
of the Project in which the alignment of Arterial A-1 is shown at the time the Landowner submits 
such plans to the authority regulating plats for the Project and Landowner shall provide Leander 
with a copy of the approved construction plans within fifteen days of their approval.  Such 
construction plans and all revisions to such plans submitted by the Landowner for approval must 
include the Arterial A-1 alignment shown on Exhibit “F”. 

4.02 Force Main Easement.  Concurrently with Leander’s approval of this Agreement, the 
Landowner will dedicate to Leander, at no cost to Leander and free and clear of all mortgages 
and liens at the time of conveyance, a non-exclusive 15-foot force main easement and 40-foot 
temporary construction easement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “G” over the property 
described by metes and bounds attached hereto as Exhibit “H”. The Landowner will reserve the 
right to grant additional easements within the easement tract to allow street and utility crossings 
for installations of streets and compatible utilities providing service within the Project.  The 
easement will provide that a portion of the wastewater force mains will be installed within the 
easement at a depth of thirteen feet and shall be encased in steel at the approximate locations 
shown on Exhibit “H” to the easement. Leander will provide a copy of the construction plans 
for the force mains to the Landowner’s engineer for review.  The Landowner’s engineer shall 
provide any comments to Leander within ten days of receipt of the construction plans. 
Leander will cooperate with the Landowner in response to reasonable requests pertaining to the 
design of the wastewater force mains during the design phase, provided that the cost of 
construction of the wastewater force mains is not increased and the completion of the design of 
the force mains is not delayed as a result of such cooperation.  The construction plans for the 
wastewater force mains will include the locations of the required thirteen foot depth and 
encasement, provided that, after construction commences, the parties may mutually agree upon 
minor changes in the design or location that do not result in an increase in the construction costs 
or time for completion of the wastewater force mains and that do not require a change 
to the approved plans.  Leander and the Landowner agree to cooperate to adjust the boundaries 
of the easement if required to avoid the removal of Heritage Trees so long as such changes that 
do not result in an increase in the construction costs or time for completion of the wastewater 
force mains, or result in an increase in costs to or loss of developable area by the Landowner.  It 
is acknowledged that the force main easement is located within the proposed right-of-way for 
Arterial A-1, provided that it is intended that the paved portions of Arterial A-1 as it is initially 
constructed will be located outside of the force main easement.   

4.03 Trail Tract Dedication.  Concurrently with Leander’s approval of this Agreement, the 
Landowner will convey to Leander, in fee simple, at no cost to Leander and free and clear of all 
mortgages and liens at the time of conveyance, Trail Tract described on Exhibit “E” by deed in 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit “I” and a temporary construction easement in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit “J”. The Landowner and the District agree not to seek to abandon 
any portion of County Road 266 that runs east and west, parallel to the South San Gabriel River, 

{W0661853.18} 8 8/28/2015 



 

and which provides access to the Trail Tract without the approval of Leander, which will not be 
unreasonably withheld provided that Leander is provided an access easement or alternative 
means of access to the Trail Tract from a public right-of-way in a location reasonably acceptable 
to Leander.  The deed shall retain a drainage easement for the Landowner’s or the District’s 
installation and maintenance of an underground drainage pipe as provided in the deed and will 
further provide that the Landowner and the District retain an easement for the purpose of 
crossing under the surface of the Trail Tract to extend utilities in connection with the 
development of the Project as provided in the deed, and that Leander will approve the locations 
where such utilities will cross the Trail Tract, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed.    

4.04 Park Access.  The Landowner shall construct one stub-out from a public street within 
the Project to the boundary of the Park Tract to provide access to the Park Tract at the point 
generally shown in Exhibit “K” (the “Park Access”).  The Park Access shall be constructed 
upon the earlier to occur of: 1) construction of Phase 4 of the Project; or 2) seven years from the 
Effective Date.  The Park Access shall be shown on the construction plans for Phase 4 of the 
Project.  The Landowner shall provide Leander with a copy of the construction plans for Phase 4 
at the time the Landowner submits such plans to the authority regulating plats for the Project 
and such construction plans for Phase 4 and all revisions to such plans submitted by the 
Landowner for approval must include the Park Access.  The Landowner shall deliver to Leander 
a copy of the approved construction plans within fifteen days of their approval.  

4.05 Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Water Connections for Park Tract.  The 
Landowner and/or the District shall construct and extend the following infrastructure 
(collectively, the “Park Infrastructure”) to the points on the Park Tract identified below at the 
Landowner’s and/or the District’s expense: (a) a minimum 8-inch water line to the southeast 
corner of the Park Tract as generally shown on Exhibit “K” (the “Water Line”); (b) a minimum 
8-inch wastewater line to the southeast corner of the Park Tract, as generally shown on Exhibit 
“K” (the “Wastewater Line”); and (c) a 6-inch reuse water line to the boundary of the Park 
Tract, as generally shown on Exhibit “K” (the “Reuse Water Line”).  Leander will pay for any 
improvements required at Liberty Hill’s wastewater treatment plant related to the storage of 
reuse water and delivery of reuse water to the Reuse Water Line.  The Landowner and/or the 
District shall construct the Park Infrastructure during Phase 4 of the Project; provided that all of 
the Park Infrastructure shall be completed within seven years of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement.  The Park Infrastructure shall be shown on the construction plans for Phase 4 of the 
Project, and the Landowner and/or the District shall obtain approval of construction plans for 
Phase 4 that include the Park Infrastructure.  The Landowner and/or the District shall provide 
Leander with a copy of the construction plans for Phase 4 at the time the Landowner submits 
such plans to the authority regulating plats for the Project and all construction plans for Phase 4 
and revisions to such plans must include the Park Infrastructure.  

4.06 Fiscal Posting for Park Infrastructure or Park Access.  Within thirty days of 
approval of any construction plans that include any component of the Park Infrastructure or the 
Park Access, the Landowner shall deliver to Leander a letter of credit equal to 110% of the 
estimated amount to construct the Park Infrastructure or Park Access in question.  Unless the 
Park Infrastructure and Park Access have previously been completed and accepted by the 
applicable governmental entity, then the Landowner must deliver one or more letters of credit in 
the estimated cost of completion of any incomplete portion of the Park Access and Park 
Infrastructure to Leander no later than the seventh anniversary of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement.  

{W0661853.18} 9 8/28/2015 



 

4.07 Right of Entry. On the terms and during the time period specified in the Right of Entry 
attached as Exhibit “L” (the “Right of Entry”), Leander may enter the portions of the Property 
and the Liberty Hill ETJ Land depicted in the Right of Entry for the purpose of installing any or 
all of Park Infrastructure and/or the Park Access that has not previously been constructed by the 
Landowner and/or the District in the time period required and as provided herein.  The 
Landowner shall execute the Right of Entry and obtain the subordination and consent of all 
mortgage and lien holders on the Property to the Right of Entry upon Leander’s approval of this 
Agreement.  Nothing herein shall obligate Leander to install the Park Infrastructure or the Park 
Access; however, if the Landowner fails to complete any portion of the Park Infrastructure or the 
Park Access in the time and manner required by this Agreement, then, after giving the 
Landowner 30 days’ written notice and an opportunity to cure the failure complained of, Leander 
will have the right to do so and, in the event Leander thereafter installs and constructs any 
portion of the Park Infrastructure or the Park Access pursuant to this Section, the Landowner 
shall reimburse Leander for its actual out of pocket costs incurred to design and construct the 
Park Infrastructure and/or Park Access in question within 30 days of receipt of written notice 
from Leander, which notice must include copies of paid invoices supporting the amounts payable 
to Leander for the design and construction of the Park Infrastructure or Park Access, as 
applicable.  Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Right of Entry will be strictly 
limited to the portion of the Property and the Liberty Hill ETJ Land described on Exhibit “K”, 
and will not affect or be extended to any other portion of the Property or the Liberty Hill ETJ 
Land.  Leander hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to execute and deliver any 
documents that may be reasonably requested by the Landowner to confirm this limitation on the 
applicability of the Right of Entry and to avoid the creation of any encumbrance on title to any 
portion of the Property or the Liberty Hill ETJ Land other than that described in the Right of 
Entry. 

4.08 Manufactured Housing.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement or 
the Applicable City Rules to the contrary, Leander agrees that HUD-certified manufactured 
homes may be located within the Property for the purpose of creating or administering the 
District (including providing qualified voters within the District or qualifying persons to serve on 
the Board of Directors of the District).  The Landowner will notify the city in whose ETJ the 
Property is located of the location of, make and model of, HUD number, and 911 address of each 
such manufactured home within 30 days after the home is occupied.  Leander further agrees 
that manufactured homes permitted by this Agreement: (i) are not required to be located on a 
platted lot; (ii) do not require a building permit; (iii) do not require a certificate of substantial 
completion; (iv) do not otherwise have to comply with the Applicable Regulations; (v) do not 
require any permit or other approval by Leander; and (vi) will be promptly removed when no 
longer needed for the creation or administration of the District.   

4.09 Director Qualifying Lots.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to 
the contrary, Leander agrees that the conveyance from time to time, by metes and bounds or 
otherwise, of any portion of the Property to any person for the sole purpose of qualifying such 
person to be a member of the Board of Directors of the District will not be considered a 
subdivision of land requiring a plat or otherwise requiring the approval of Leander; however, no 
structure, other than manufactured housing authorized by Section 4.08, may be constructed on 
any such property unless and until a plat of such portion has been approved.   

4.10 Applicable City Rules.  If the Property remains in Leander’s ETJ subject to Leander’s 
development regulations, then the development of the Property will be subject to this paragraph.  
If the Property is released from Leander’s ETJ, this Section will be of no further force or effect 
upon acceptance of the Property into Liberty Hill’s ETJ. 

{W0661853.18} 10 8/28/2015 



 

a. The Applicable City Rules will be Leander’s City Charter and Leander’s 
ordinances, rules and regulations in effect and existing on the Effective Date, as amended by: (i) 
any amendments authorized by Chapter 245, Texas Local Government Code; (ii) any approvals, 
variances, waivers and exceptions to such rules that are approved by Leander, including the 
Project Approvals; and (iii) any additional restrictions or regulations agreed to by the Landowner 
in writing, including those set forth in the Project Approvals. 

b. The City hereby approves the Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.  The 
Property will be developed and the infrastructure required for the Property will be designed and 
constructed in accordance with the Applicable Rules, the Concept Plan, the Project Approvals, 
and this Agreement. 

c. Leander approves the approvals, variances and exceptions to the Applicable City 
Rules set forth on the attached Exhibit “D”, which will constitute Project Approvals.  The 
Landowner agrees to comply with the Project Approvals. 

d. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, Leander confirms and 
agrees that the Landowner has vested authority to develop the Property in accordance with the 
Applicable City Rules, as modified by the Project Approvals.  Ordinances, rules or regulations, 
or changes or modifications to Leander’s ordinances, rules and regulations adopted after the 
Effective Date will only be applicable to the extent permitted by Chapter 245, Texas Local 
Government Code, provided that these vested rights may be modified or revoked by Leander if: 
(1) the Landowner, or its successors or assigns with respect to each affected parcel of the Property, 
agrees in writing to such modification or revocation; (2) the Landowner fails to complete and obtain 
final acceptance from Leander of one or more sections of the subdivision for the Property within ten 
years after the Effective Date, or thereafter abandons development of the Property; or (3) State law 
or court order mandates a change.  If there is any conflict between the Applicable City Rules and 
the terms of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement will control.  As used in this Section, 
“abandons development of the Property” or “abandons the Project” means that Landowner 
commences the development of a subdivision section within the Property for which all required 
permits have been issued, but fails to complete such development within five years thereafter.  
Notwithstanding any subsequent change to such statute, the Landowner will be entitled to take 
advantage of all rights conferred under Chapter 245, Texas Local Government Code, without 
forfeiting any rights under this Agreement; provided that Landowner will develop the Project in 
compliance with the Project Approvals unless the parties agree otherwise in writing.   

ARTICLE V. 
UTILITIES 

5.01 Wastewater Utility Services.   

a. If Leander is the retail wastewater service provider, wastewater utility services 
will be provided to the Property in accordance with the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement, as it is 
amended from time to time.   

b. If Leander is the retail wastewater service provider, the District and/or the 
Landowner will design, finance, construct, and convey to Leander all onsite and offsite 
wastewater facilities required for service to the Property, at the District’s and/or Landowner’s 
expense.  All of such construction will be bid in accordance with the requirements applicable to 
the District under the rules of the TCEQ and Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code.  All 
improvements required to serve the District will be designed and constructed in accordance with 
Leander’s ordinances, regulations, and rules, the approved construction plans, and good 

{W0661853.18} 11 8/28/2015 



 

engineering practices.  The plans and specifications will be subject to review and approval by 
Leander prior to the commencement of construction, and Leander will collect all applicable 
review fees in accordance with its standard policies and procedures.   

c. If Leander is the retail wastewater service provider, Leander commits and agrees 
to provide wastewater service to customers within the Property in the same manner and on the 
same terms and conditions as Leander provides service to similarly situated retail customers 
inside its corporate limits.  The Landowner and/or District agree to pay and shall pay all costs 
and fees, including service reservation and impact fees, associated with retail wastewater service 
required by Leander ordinances and the Wholesale Wastewater Agreement.  If Leander will not 
be the retail wastewater utility provider as set forth herein, this Section 5.01(b). as well as the 
portions of Sections 5.02, 5.03, 5.04, and 5.05 of this Agreement that relate to wastewater 
service, will be of no further force or effect. 

5.02 Water Utility Services.   

a. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Property is currently located within 
the certificated water service territory of Chisholm Trail SUD, but, pursuant to a settlement 
agreement between Leander and Chisholm Trail SUD, Chisholm Trail SUD has agreed that 
Leander may provide water service to an area that includes the Property, subject to the terms of 
the settlement agreement.  Under the settlement agreement, Leander is currently obligated to 
apply for a water CCN that includes the Property.  Leander agrees that the Landowner will have 
the option to elect to obtain water service from Leander or from Chisholm Trail SUD subject to 
the terms of this Section 5.02. 

b. Landowner acknowledges that until Leander is granted a water CCN for the 
property, Leander and Georgetown have agreed to consult and mutually agree on which utility 
will provide retail water service to new development within the Property.  Landowner shall 
notify Leander if Landowner desires to obtain water service for the Property from Chisholm Trail 
SUD.  Upon receiving such notification, Leander agrees to cooperate in good faith to amend the 
settlement agreement or to enter into a new agreement with Chisholm Trail SUD to enable 
Chisholm Trail SUD to provide such service on terms and conditions that are agreeable to 
Leander and the Landowner.  Leander’s approval of any such amendment or agreement will not 
be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, provided that the terms and conditions of the 
amendment or agreement are agreeable to Leander. 

c. If the Landowner desires to obtain water service for the Property from Leander, 
then, to the extent that the Landowner desires retail water service prior to the date that Leander 
obtains a water CCN for the Property or the Property is otherwise released from Chisholm Trail 
SUD’s CCN, then, unless Leander and Chisholm Trail SUD meet and confer, and reach an 
agreement that Leander will serve the Property, the Landowner shall be responsible for 
preparing and processing a petition for release of the Property from the certificated water service 
territory of Chisholm Trail SUD Section 13.254(a-5) of the Texas Water Code, at the Landowner’s 
expense, except as provided herein.  The Landowner shall file such petition with the PUC no 
later than 30 days of written request by Leander and diligently pursue obtaining the release of 
the Property from Chisholm Trail SUD’s CCN.  Unless Leander meets and confers and reaches 
an agreement as provided above, Leander shall have no obligation to provide retail water service 
to customers located within the Property until such time as Leander obtains certification (single 
or dual) for the Property, or the Property is otherwise released from Chisholm Trail SUD’s CCN 
and any other conditions of Section 13.254 as a prerequisite to Leander providing retail water 
service are met.  Leander agrees to pay any compensation the PUC awards under Section 
13.254(a-6) or 13.254(d), under the terms of Leander’s agreement with Chisholm Trial SUD or 

{W0661853.18} 12 8/28/2015 



 

otherwise; provided that the Landowner shall give Leander prior notice of any proceedings in 
which the PUC may determine such award so that Leander may elect to participate in such 
proceeding.   

d. If the Landowner desires to obtain water service from Leander, then the 
Landowner shall not object to Leander’s application or efforts to obtain a water CCN for the 
Property and shall submit a letter in support of Leander’s water CCN application within 30 days 
of Leander’s request.  The Landowner and the District will not otherwise protest Leander’s 
water CCN application. 

e. If Chisholm Trail SUD will be the retail water utility provider as set forth 
herein, Sections 5.02(c) and (d), as well as the portions of Sections 5.03, 5.04, 5.05 and 5.06 of 
this Agreement that relate to water service, will be of no further force or effect. 

5.03 Responsibility for Design, Financing and Construction.  If Leander is the retail 
water and/or wastewater service provider for the Property, the District and/or the Landowner 
will design, finance, construct, and convey to Leander all onsite and offsite water and/or 
wastewater facilities required for service to the Property, at the District’s and/or the Landowner’s 
expense.  All of such construction will be bid in accordance with the requirements applicable to 
the District under the rules of the TCEQ and Chapters 49 and 54, Texas Water Code.  All such 
improvements required to serve the Property will be designed and constructed in accordance 
with Leander’s ordinances, regulations, and rules, the approved construction plans, and good 
engineering practices.  The plans and specifications will be subject to review and approval by 
Leander prior to the commencement of construction, and Leander will collect all applicable 
review fees in accordance with its standard policies and procedures.   

5.04 Utility Planning and Phasing.  Except as specifically provided otherwise in this 
Agreement, Leander agrees that it will not require that the Landowner or the District finance or 
construct any water or wastewater facilities that are sized or extended to serve property other 
than the Property unless Leander cost-participates and pays for the oversizing or extensions in 
question.   

5.05 Easements.  Unless retail water services is provided by another water utility provider, 
all water improvements up to the customer side of the meter will be constructed within dedicated 
utility easements or public rights-of-way, and all required easements will be dedicated to 
Leander free and clear of all mortgages and liens at the time of conveyance prior to Leander’s 
acceptance of the water facilities.  If Leander is the retail wastewater service provider, then all 
wastewater improvements will be constructed within dedicated utility easements or public 
rights-of-way, and all required easements will be dedicated to Leander and free and clear of all 
mortgages and liens at the time of conveyance prior to Leander’s acceptance of the wastewater 
facilities. 

5.06 Commitment, Timing and Availability of Service.  If Leander is the retail water 
service provider to the Property, then, subject to satisfaction of the conditions specified 
in Sections 5.02(c) or (d), above, and the Landowner’s or the District’s constructing and 
completing the water infrastructure required to extend water service to the Property in 
accordance with Leander’s ordinances, rules, regulations, the approved construction plans, and 
good engineering practices and payment of fees required by Leander ordinances to obtain retail 
water service, Leander commits and agrees to provide and to maintain the ability to provide 
retail water utility service as and when required for the development of the Property, at flow rates 
and pressures sufficient to meet the minimum requirements set forth in the TCEQ’s rules and 
regulations, as well as sufficient fire flow, and agrees to provide written confirmation of the 

{W0661853.18} 13 8/28/2015 



 

availability of service upon the District’s request if required in connection with any District Bond 
sale, or if requested by the Landowner for any lender, any prospective purchaser of lands in the 
Property, or any governmental entity with jurisdiction.  If Leander is the retail wastewater 
service provider to the Property, then, subject to the Landowner’s or the District’s constructing 
and completing the wastewater infrastructure required to extend wastewater service to the 
Property in accordance with Leander’s ordinances, rules, regulations, the approved construction 
plans, and good engineering practices and payment of fees required by Leander ordinances and 
this Agreement to obtain retail wastewater services, Leander commits and agrees to provide and 
to maintain the ability to provide retail wastewater utility service as and when required for the 
development of the Property sufficient to meet the minimum requirements set forth in the 
TCEQ’s rules and regulations and agrees to provide written confirmation of the availability of 
service upon the District’s request if required in connection with any District Bond sale, or if 
requested by Landowner for any lender, any prospective purchaser of lands in the Property, or 
any governmental entity with jurisdiction.   

5.07 Fiscal Posting.  If Leander is the retail water or wastewater utility provider, then, 
within 30 days of the approval of construction plans for water or wastewater infrastructure to 
serve the Property, as they may be approved from time to time, the Landowner shall deliver to 
Leander a letter of credit in the amount of 110% of the estimated cost of the infrastructure shown 
on the approved construction plans, that complies with Leander’s subdivision ordinance to 
guarantee completion of the water and/or wastewater infrastructure, as appropriate, shown in 
the construction plans.    

ARTICLE VI. 
RELEASE OF THE PROPERTY TO LIBERTY HILL 

Leander agrees to release the Property from Leander’s ETJ to Liberty Hill’s ETJ pursuant 
to the terms and conditions of the agreement between Leander and Liberty Hill that governs 
release of the Property to Liberty Hill’s ETJ in effect at the time that Liberty Hill acts on the 
Landowner’s petition to Liberty Hill for inclusion of the Property in Liberty Hill’s ETJ.   

ARTICLE VII. 
TERM, ASSIGNMENT, REMEDIES 

7.01 Term.  Notwithstanding the transfer of the Property into Liberty Hill’s ETJ, (i) the 
rights and obligations of Leander, the Landowner and the District under Sections 3.09, 4.01, 
4.02, 4.03, 4.04, 4.05, 4.06, 4.07 and 5.07 of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect 
until Leander, the Landowner and the District fulfill all of their respective obligations under 
those Sections, or unless sooner terminated or amended by written agreement of Leander, the 
Landowner, and the District; (ii) if Leander provides retail water service to the Property, then the 
provisions of Sections 5.02(c) and (d) and the portions of Sections 5.03 through 5.07 of this 
Agreement that relate to retail water service will survive as long as Leander is providing retail 
water service; and (ii) if Leander provides retail wastewater service to the Property, then the 
provisions of Section 5.01 and the portions of Sections 5.03 through 5.07 of this Agreement that 
relate to retail wastewater service will survive as long as Leander is providing wastewater service.  
This Agreement shall be effective as between Leander and the Landowner as of the date of 
execution of this Agreement by the Landowner and Leander.  This Agreement shall be effective 
as between Leander and the District as of the date of execution of this Agreement by the District. 

7.02 Assignment. 

a. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, the rights and obligations of the 

{W0661853.18} 14 8/28/2015 



 

Landowner under this Agreement may only be assigned by the Landowner to a subsequent 
developer of all or a portion of the Property with Leander’s prior written consent, which consent 
will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.  Any such assignment will only be 
effective if it is in writing, specifically sets forth the assigned rights and obligations, is approved 
by the City Council of Leander, is executed by the assignee, and an executed copy is delivered to 
Leander.  Upon any assignment and in the event of default by one developer, Leander may 
pursue all remedies against that nonperforming developer but will not impede development 
activities of any performing developer as a result of that nonperformance.   

b. This Agreement is not intended to be binding upon, or create any encumbrance to 
title as to, any ultimate consumer who purchases a fully developed and improved lot within the 
Property; provided, however, that every grantee will be put on notice and take title subject to 
Leander’s rights set forth herein, including annexation rights, development standards, and the 
property interests conveyed to Leander under the terms and conditions set forth herein. 

7.03 Remedies.  In the event of default by any Party, a nondefaulting party may give the 
defaulting Party written notice specifying the default (the “Notice”).  If the defaulting Party fails 
to fully cure any default that can be cured by the payment of money (“Monetary Default”) within 
30 days after receipt of the Notice, or fails to commence the cure of any default specified in the 
Notice that is not a Monetary Default within 30 days of the date of the Notice and thereafter to 
diligently pursue such cure to completion, then the other Party will be entitled to pursue all 
remedies available at law and at equity, including but not limited to, specific performance of this 
Agreement, mandamus, and injunction.  

7.04 Cooperation. 

a. Leander, the Landowner, and the District each agree to execute such further 
documents or instruments as may be reasonably necessary to evidence their agreements 
hereunder.  

b. In the event of any third party lawsuit or other claim relating to the validity of this 
Agreement or any actions taken hereunder, to the extent provided by law, Leander, the 
Landowner, and the District agree to cooperate in the defense of such suit or claim, and to use 
their respective best efforts to resolve the suit or claim without diminution in their respective 
rights and obligations under this Agreement.   

ARTICLE VIII. 
EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT 

The Landowner covenants and agrees to cause the District to approve, execute and 
deliver this Agreement to Leander within 30 days after the organizational meeting of the Board 
of Directors of the District.  If the District fails to approve, execute, and deliver this Agreement; 
such failure is not cured following Notice as provided in Section 7.03, such failure will constitute 
a material breach of this Agreement by the Landowner and operate to prohibit the District from 
taking any affirmative act to issue Bonds until the failure has been cured. Leander will have all 
rights to enjoin the issuance of Bonds during any period in which a material breach exists under 
this Section. If the Landowner fails to cause the District to approve, execute and deliver this 
Agreement, then the Landowner may not, from and after the date of such breach, enter into any 
agreements with the District or seek reimbursement from the District for any expenses incurred 
in connection with the District or development of the Property until the breach has been cured.   

ARTICLE IX. 

{W0661853.18} 15 8/28/2015 



 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

9.01 Notice.  Any notice or other communication given under this Agreement must be in 
writing and may be given: (i) by depositing it in the United States mail, certified, with return 
receipt requested, addressed to the Party to be notified and with all charges prepaid; or (ii) by 
depositing it with Federal Express or another service guaranteeing “next day delivery”, addressed 
to the party to be notified and with all charges prepaid; (iii) by personally delivering it to the 
Party, or any agent of the Party listed in this Agreement; or (iv) by electronic mail or facsimile 
with confirming copy sent by one of the other described methods of notice set forth above.  
Notice by United States mail will be effective on the earlier of the date of receipt or three days 
after the date of mailing.  Notice given in any other manner will be effective only when received.  
For purposes of notice, the addresses of the Parties will, until changed as provided below, be as 
follows: 

City:   City of Leander 
Attn: City Manager 
 

By personal delivery: 200 West Willis Street  
Leander, TX 78641 
 

By mail:   P.O. Box 319 
Leander, TX 78641 

 
With a copy to: Paige Saenz 

City Attorney  
Executive Office Terrace 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752 

 
Landowner:  Caughfield Ranch, Ltd. 

Attn: Garrett Martin 
9111 Jollyville Road, Ste. 111 
Austin, Texas 78759 

 
District:  Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 33 

c/o Armbrust & Brown, PLLC 
Attn: Sue Brooks Littlefield 
100 Congress Ave., Ste. 1300 
Austin, Texas 78701 

The Parties may change their respective addresses to any other address within the United States 
of America by giving at least five (5) days’ written notice to the other Parties.  The Landowner 
and the District may, by giving at least five (5) days’ written notice to Leander, designate 
additional parties to receive copies of notices under this Agreement.  

9.02 Severability; Waiver. 

a. If any provisions of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, under 
present or future laws, it is the intention of the Parties that the remainder of this Agreement not 
be affected and, in lieu of each illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision, that a provision be 
added to this Agreement which is legal, valid and enforceable and is as similar in terms to the 
illegal, invalid or enforceable provision as is possible.  

{W0661853.18} 16 8/28/2015 



 

b. Any failure by a party to insist upon strict performance by the other party of any 
material provision of this Agreement will not be deemed waiver thereof or of any other provision, 
and such party may at any time thereafter insist upon strict performance of any and all of the 
provisions of this Agreement.  

9.03 Applicable Law and Venue.  The interpretation, performance, enforcement and 
validity of this Agreement are governed by the laws of the State of Texas. Venue will be in a court 
of appropriate jurisdiction in Williamson County, Texas.  

9.04 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties 
regarding the development of the Property and creation of the District.  There are no other 
agreements or promises, oral or written, between the Parties regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement.  This Agreement can be amended only by written agreement signed by the Parties.  
This Agreement supersedes all other agreements between the Parties concerning the subject 
matter.  

9.05 Exhibits, Headings, Construction, and Counterparts.  All appendices and 
exhibits referred to within or attached to this Agreement are incorporated into and made a part 
of this Agreement for all purposes.  The paragraph headings contained in this Agreement are for 
convenience only and do not enlarge or limit the scope or meaning of the paragraphs.  Wherever 
appropriate, words of the masculine gender may include the feminine or neuter, and the singular 
may include the plural, and vice-versa.  The Parties acknowledge that each of them have been 
actively and equally involved in the negotiation of this Agreement.  Accordingly, the rule of 
construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party will not be 
employed in interpreting this Agreement or any exhibits hereto.  This Agreement may be 
executed in any number of counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original, and all 
of which will together constitute the same instrument. If there is any conflict between this 
Agreement and the Applicable City Rules, the terms of this Agreement will control.   

9.06 Time.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.  In computing the number of days for 
purposes of this Agreement, all days will be counted, including Saturdays, Sundays and legal 
holidays; however, if the final day of any time period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, 
then the final day will be deemed to be the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal 
holiday.  

9.07 Authority for Execution.  Leander certifies, represents and warrants that the 
execution of this Agreement is duly authorized and adopted in conformity with its City 
ordinances.  The Landowner hereby certifies, represents, and warrants that the execution of this 
Agreement is duly authorized and adopted in conformity with the Landowner’s limited 
partnership agreement.  Pursuant to the requirements of Section 212.172(c)(4), Texas Local 
Government Code, this Agreement, or and all amendments to this Agreement, or a 
memorandum of agreement in the form agreed upon by the parties, will be recorded in the 
Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas.  

9.08 Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and made a part hereof 
for all purposes: 

Exhibit “A” - Description of the Property  
Exhibit “B” - Concept Plan 
Exhibit “C” - Description of Park Tract 
Exhibit “D” - Project Approvals 
Exhibit “E” - Description of the Trail Tract 

{W0661853.18} 17 8/28/2015 



 

Exhibit “F” - Depiction of Arterial A-1 Alignment 
Exhibit “G” - Form of Force Main Easement 
Exhibit “H” - Metes and Bounds Description of Force Main 

Easement 
Exhibit “I” - Form of Deed for Trail Tract   
Exhibit “J” - Form of Temporary Construction Easement 
Exhibit “K” - Depiction of Park Access, Water Line, Wastewater 

Line, and Reuse Water Line, and Description of 
Right-of-Entry 

Exhibit “L” - Form of Right-of-Entry  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 
indicated below.  

{W0661853.18} 18 8/28/2015 



 

 

THE LANDOWNER: 

CAUGHFIELD RANCH, LTD., a Texas limited 
partnership 

 
By: Caughfield Ranch GP, LLC, a Texas limited 

liability company, its General Partner 
 

By:       
Garrett S. Martin, President 

 
Date:       

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

§ 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________________, 
2015 by Garrett S. Martin, President of Caughfield Ranch GP, LLC, a Texas limited liability 
company, general partner of Caughfield Ranch, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, on behalf of 
said limited liability company and limited partnership.  

 
       
Notary Public Signature 

(SEAL) 
 

  

{W0661853.18} 19 8/28/2015 



 

 LEANDER: 

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 

By:       
______, ________________ 

 
Date:       

 

 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Printed Name:     
Title:       
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

§ 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON  § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________________, 2015 
by ___________________, __________ of the City of Leander, Texas, a home rule city, on 
behalf of said city. 

 
       
Notary Public Signature 

(SEAL) 

 

  

{W0661853.18} 20 8/28/2015 



 

THE DISTRICT: 
 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY 
DISTRICT NO. 33 

 
 

By:       
Printed Name:      
Title:       
Date:       

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Printed Name:      
Title:       
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

§ 
COUNTY OF __________  § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of ________________, 
201__ by _________________________, _____________________ of the Board of 
Directors of Williamson County Municipal Utility District No. 33, on behalf of said District.   

 
       
Notary Public Signature 

(SEAL)

{W0661853.18} 21 8/28/2015 























































































CR
 26

6

US
 18

3 N
B

CR
 26

7

W SH 29
US

 18
3 S

B

US 183

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

CR
 27

0

RI
VE

R 
RU

N

S BAKER CIR

N BAKER CIR

BR
AU

N 
PA

RK
WA

Y

BU
RB

A 
LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

W BAKER CIR

CRIDER LN

WHITEWING DR

DRAPER LN

ARROYO CIR

US 183 SB

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 1,250
Feet

LOCATION MAP Location Map - Caughfield Tracts

CITY MAPË

Caughfield Tracts
City Limits
Leander ETJ

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



AGENDA ITEM # 16b 

 
Executive Summary 

September 3, 2015 

Agenda Subject:  An ordinance of the City of Leander, Texas giving consent to the creation of 
a municipal utility district on the Caughfield tract. 
  
Background:  The City received a request from Caughfield Ranch, Ltd. to create a MUD on the 
approximately 186.71 acre Caughfield tract which is located in the northwest portion of the 
City's ETJ. 
 
The ordinance will be accompanied by a Consent Agreement which will be considered 
concurrently with this item. 
     
Origination:  Applicant: Caughfield Ranch, Ltd. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the resolution.   
 
Attachments:  

1. MUD Consent ordinance 
2. Landowner petition 
3. Location map 

 
Prepared by:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Director of Development Services 
 
 7/30/15 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _15-039-00 
 

  
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

GIVING CONSENT TO THE CREATION OF MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapters 49 and 54 of the Texas Water Code, Caughfield 
Ranch, Ltd. (the “Petitioner”) wishes to create a municipal utility district (the “District”) to serve 
the 186.71 acre tract of land in Williamson County, Texas described in the attached Exhibits 
“A-1”, “A-2” and “A-3” (“Petitioner’s Land”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Land is located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of 
Leander, Texas (the “City”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, land that is within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of a city may not be 
included within a municipal utility district without the written consent of such city; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Petitioner has submitted to the Mayor and City Council of the City a 
Petition for Consent to the Creation of and Inclusion of Land in Municipal Utility District dated 
effective April 21, 2014 and an Amended Petition for Consent to Creation of and Inclusion of 
Land in Municipal Utility District dated effective July 9, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City desires to adopt this Ordinance for the purpose 
of consenting to the creation of the Districts;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS: 
 

Section 1. That all of the matters and facts set out in the preamble hereof are found to 
be true and correct. 
 

Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas, hereby gives its 
written consent to the creation of the District over Petitioner’s Land.   

Section 3. The terms and provisions of Article II and Article III of the Development, 
ETJ Release, and Consent Agreement for the Caughfield Tract attached hereto as Exhibit “B” 
are incorporated herein by reference and will be applicable to the District (the “Agreement”). 

Section 4. That, in addition to all the rights and remedies provided by the laws of the 
state, in the event the District violates the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, the City shall 
be entitled to injunctive relief or a writ of mandamus issued by a court of competent jurisdiction 
restraining, compelling or requiring the District and its officials to observe and comply with the 
terms and provisions prescribed by this Ordinance.  
 

Section 5. That, if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 

{W0621703.3} 1 



jurisdiction, such shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such 
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

Section 6. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval on this the 3rd day of September, 2015. 

 

ADOPTED on this 3rd day of September, 2015. 

        City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 

  

{W0621703.3} 2 



CERTIFICATE OF ORDINANCE NO. ___________________ 
 
 
  

CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 
 
 
 
 
 I, the undersigned City Secretary of the City of Leander, Texas hereby certify that the 
attached and foregoing is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. ____________________ of 
the City of Leander, Texas, consenting to the creation of a municipal utility district within the 
extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City, in Williamson County.  I further certify that said 
Ordinance was passed and approved by the City Council of the City of Leander on 
_____________________, 20__. 
 
 WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, the ______ 
day of _________________________, 20__. 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       City Secretary, City of Leander, Texas 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
  

{W0621703.3} 3 



EXHIBIT B 
The Agreement 

{W0621703.3} 4 

























CR
 26

6

US
 18

3 N
B

CR
 26

7

W SH 29
US

 18
3 S

B

US 183

RIVA RIDGE DR

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

CR
 27

0

RI
VE

R 
RU

N

S BAKER CIR

N BAKER CIR

BR
AU

N 
PA

RK
WA

Y

BU
RB

A 
LN

HIGH GABRIEL EAST

W BAKER CIR

CRIDER LN

WHITEWING DR

DRAPER LN

ARROYO CIR

US 183 SB

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±

0 1,250
Feet

LOCATION MAP Location Map - Caughfield Tracts

CITY MAPË

Caughfield Tracts
City Limits
Leander ETJ

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 3, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of an Agreement between the City of Leander and the City of Liberty Hill 
Regarding the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction Release of the Caughfield Tract. 
 
Background: Leander and Liberty Hill entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement for 
Urban Planning, Watershed Protection and the Release of Extraterritorial Jurisdiction dated 
effective as of October 5, 2006 (the “Interlocal Agreement”) under which Liberty Hill and 
Leander agreed that Liberty Hill’s development regulations would apply to certain property. 
 
The Caughfield tract is one of the properties subject to the 2006 agreement and this agreement 
would release the Caughfield tract from Leander's ETJ as well as release the recently 
purchased San Gabriel River park property from Liberty Hill's planning jurisdiction and 
incorporate it into Leander's ETJ. 
 
  
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the agreement 
 
Attachments: ETJ agreement (to be provided as a supplement to the packet) 
 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 

 
Executive Summary 

 
September 3, 2015 

 
 
Subject: Consideration of an Amended and Restated Agreement Regarding Consent to 
Creation of Leander Municipal Utility Districts No. 1, 2 and 3 and Development of the Bar W 
Ranch. 

Background: The City and the Developer previously entered into the “Agreement Regarding 
Consent to Creation of Municipal Utility Districts and Development of the Wedemeyer Ranch” on  
December 30, 2008.  In that agreement the City and the Developer agreed to certain terms and 
conditions relating to the creation of the Municipal Utility Districts and the development of the 
approximately 924 acre tract of land described on the attached Exhibit A (the “Land”).  The 
Districts, which collectively encompass approximately 670.8 acres of the Land, were created 
and executed and joined in the Original Consent Agreement at the organizational meetings of 
their respective boards of directors on October 24, 2013.  The Original Consent Agreement has 
previously been amended by “Amendment to Agreement Regarding Consent to Creation of 
Municipal Utility Districts and Development of the Wedemeyer Ranch” dated April 16, 2015. 

This amended and restated agreement provides for the following revised terms: 
• Water service to the property will be provided by the City of Leander and not Chisholm 

Trail SUD 
• Wastewater service to the property will be provided by the City of Leander through a 

wholesale contract with Liberty Hill and not by an on-site wastewater treatment plant 
• Cost participation by the City, the developer and the Districts have been defined for the 

water and wastewater infrastructure 
• Development standards and vesting have been modified and clarified 

 
Financial Consideration: The City is required to cost participate in the regional wastewater lift 
station and force main to convey wastewater to the Liberty Hill plant.  The City is also required 
to participate in the cost of extending water service to the property.  These items have been 
budgeted in the City's water and wastewater capital improvements plan. 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the Agreement 
 
Attachments:  

1. Agreement with exhibits (to be provided as a supplement to the packet) 
2. Location map 

 
Prepared by: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
 



! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

PLAIN
ES

LEANDER
PARK & R IDE
RAIL STATION

REAGAN'S OVERLOOK

PALMERA R IDGE

BRYSON

RANCHO SIENNA

PARKERTRACT

2B

5D

2B

4C

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B
2B

2B

2B2B 2B

2B

2B 2B
2B

2B

2B
2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B
2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B2B
2B

2B 2B

2B

2B

2B
2B

2B2B

2B
2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

2B

W SH 29
CR

 26
6

CR
 27

0

CR
 26

7

CROSS CREEK LN

CR 268

CR
OS

S 
CR

EE
K 

RD

BAKER LN

CR 259

KAUFFMAN LOOP

DR
VW

RI
DG

E 
VI

EW
 D

R

CR 264

LAKE SIDE DR

VP
 R

AN
CH

 D
R

PA
RK

 P
LA

CE
 D

R

RONALD W REAGAN BLVD

PVR 918

ORCHARD DR

SANTA RITA BLVD

PEGGY DR

MO
NT

AL
CI

NO
 L

N

SOUTH GABRIEL DR

CHRISTOPHER LN

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

BRADLEY RANCH RD

PENNA LN

OA
K 

PL
AZ

A 
DR

OA
K 

ME
AD

OW
 D

R

CR 274

MI
KE

S 
W

AY

WATERFORD LN

ARREZO LN

KING LN

BR
AU

N 
PA

RK
WA

Y

LA GROTTA LN

JENNIFER LN

AIRPORT D
R

MINDY WAY

MAGONA TRL

MARSHALL CT

LEN BAR LN

GABRIELS LOOP

NORCIA LOOP

NORWOOD DR

DRAPER LN
183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 1,000

Feet

Development Agreement

Attachment #4
Location Exhibit
Wedemeyer

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits



AGENDA ITEM # 19  

 
Executive Summary 

 September 3, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:   Receive Effective & Rollback Tax Rate Calculations for FY 2015-16.  

 
Background:    State “Truth-in-Taxation” laws require calculation and publication of a taxing entity’s 

effective tax rate and rollback rate.  The effective tax rate is generally equal to the prior year’s taxes 

divided by the current taxable value of properties that were also on the tax roll in the prior year.  The 

rollback rate allows a taxing entity to raise the same amount of M&O money as raised in the prior year, 

plus 8 percent.  The rollback debt service rate is the rate needed to pay the entity’s debt service for the 

upcoming year.  The rates are as follows: 

Current Year FY 2014-15 $0.652920 per $100 valuation 

Proposed Rate FY 2015-16 $0.632920 per $100 valuation 

FY 16 Effective Tax Rate $0.614859 per $100 valuation 

FY 16 Rollback Tax Rate $0.653065 per $100 valuation 

Effective Operating Tax Rate $0.392394 per $100 valuation 

Rollback M&O Tax Rate $0.423785 per $100 valuation 

Debt Rate $0.229280 per $100 valuation 

 
Origination:       Robert G. Powers, Finance Director  
 
Financial Consideration:  N.A.  
 
Recommendation:     No Action is Required 
 
Attachments:    Effective & Rollback Rate Calculations; Public Hearing Notice 
 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 1/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet
City of Leander

 

See pages 13 to 16 for an explanation of the effective tax rate.

1. 2014 total taxable value. Enter the amount of 2014 taxable value on the 2014
tax roll today. Include any adjustments since last year's certification; exclude
Section 25.25(d) onethird overappraisal corrections from these adjustments.
This total includes the taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct
in line 2) and the captured value for tax increment financing (will deduct taxes in
line 14). $2,505,222,437

2. 2014 tax ceilings. Counties, Cities and Junior College Districts. Enter 2014 total
taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of
homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Other units enter "0" If your taxing units
adopted the tax ceiling provision in 2014 or prior year for homeowners age 65 or
older or disabled, use this step. $196,957,692

3. Preliminary 2014 adjusted taxable value. Subtract line 2 from line 1. $2,308,264,745

4. 2014 total adopted tax rate. $0.652920/$100

5. 2014 taxable value lost because court appeals of ARB decisions reduced
2014 appraised value.
A. Original 2014 ARB values: $8,906,280
B. 2014 values resulting from final court decisions:  $7,909,361
C. 2014 value loss. Subtract B from A.   $996,919

6. 2014 taxable value, adjusted for courtordered reductions.
Add line 3 and line 5C. $2,309,261,664

7. 2014 taxable value of property in territory the unit deannexed after January
1, 2014. Enter the 2014 value of property in deannexed territory. $0

8. 2014 taxable value lost because property first qualified for an exemption in
2014. Note that lowering the amount or percentage of an existing exemption
does not create a new exemption or reduce taxable value. If the taxing unit
increased an original exemption, use the difference between the original
exempted amount and the increased exempted amount. Do not include value
lost due to freeport, "goodsintransit" exemptions.
A. Absolute exemptions. Use 2014 market value: $637
B. Partial exemptions. 2015 exemption amount or

2015 percentage exemption times 2014 value: + $5,257,869
C. Value loss. Add A and B.   $5,258,506



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 2/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

9. 2014 taxable value lost because property first qualified for agricultural
appraisal (1d or 1d1), timber appraisal, recreational/scenic appraisal or
public access airport special appraisal in 2015. Use only those properties
that first qualified in 2015; do not use properties that qualified in 2014.
A. 2014 market value: $1,380,057
B. 2015 productivity or special appraised value:  $2,636
C. Value loss. Subtract B from A.   $1,377,421

10. Total adjustments for lost value. Add lines 7, 8C and 9C. $6,635,927

11. 2014 adjusted taxable value. Subtract line 10 from line 6. $2,302,625,737

12. Adjusted 2014 taxes. Multiply line 4 by line 11 and divide by $100. $15,034,303

13. Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2014. Enter the amount of taxes
refunded during the last budget year for tax years preceding tax year 2014. Types
of refunds include court decisions, Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and
Section 31.11 payment errors. Do not include refunds for tax year 2014. This line
applies only to tax years preceding tax year 2014. $30,066

14. Taxes in tax increment financing (TIF) for tax year 2014. Enter the amount of
taxes paid into the tax increment fund for a reinvestment zone as agreed by the
taxing unit. If the unit has no 2015 captured appraised value in Line 16D, enter
"0." $105,726

15. Adjusted 2014 taxes with refunds. Add lines 12 and 13, subtract line 14. $14,958,643

16. Total 2015 taxable value on the 2015 certified appraisal roll today. This
value includes only certified values and includes the total taxable value of
homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct in line 18). These homesteads
includes homeowners age 65 or older or disabled.
A. Certified values only: $3,010,679,608
B. Counties: Include railroad rolling stock values

certified by the Comptroller's office: + $0



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 3/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

16.
(cont.)

C. Pollution control exemption: Deduct the value of
property exempted for the current tax year for the
first time as pollution control property (use this line
based on attorney's advice):  $0

D. Tax increment financing: Deduct the 2015
captured appraised value of property taxable by a
taxing unit in a tax increment financing zone for
which the 2015 taxes will be deposited into the tax
increment fund. Do not include any new property
value that will be included in line 21 below.  $44,630,895

E. Total 2015 value. Add A and B, then subtract C
and D.   $2,966,048,713

17. Total value of properties under protest or not included on certified
appraisal roll.
A. 2015 taxable value of properties under protest.

The chief appraiser certifies a list of properties still
under ARB protest. The list shows the district's
value and the taxpayer's claimed value, if any or
an estimate of the value if the taxpayer wins. For
each of the properties under protest, use the
lowest of these values. Enter the total value. $64,714,293

B. 2015 value of properties not under protest or
included on certified appraisal roll. The chief
appraiser gives taxing units a list of those taxable
properties that the chief appraiser knows about but
are not included at appraisal roll certification.
These properties also are not on the list of
properties that are still under protest. On this list of
properties, the chief appraiser includes the market
value, appraised value and exemptions for the
preceding year and a reasonable estimate of the
market value, appraised value and exemptions for
the current year. Use the lower market, appraised
or taxable value (as appropriate). Enter the total
value. + $0  



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 4/10

2015 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

17.
(cont.)

C. Total value under protest or not certified. Add A
and B.   $64,714,293

18. 2015 tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior colleges enter 2015 total taxable
value of homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of
homeowners age 65 or older or disabled. Other units enter "0." If your taxing
units adopted the tax ceiling provision in 2014 or prior year for homeowners age
65 or older or disabled, use this step. $259,020,485

19. 2015 total taxable value. Add lines 16E and 17C. Subtract line 18. $2,771,742,521

20. Total 2015 taxable value of properties in territory annexed after January 1,
2008. Include both real and personal property. Enter the 2015 value of property in
territory annexed. $30,845,229

21. Total 2015 taxable value of new improvements and new personal property
located in new improvements. "New" means the item was not on the appraisal
roll in 2014. An improvement is a building, structure, fixture or fence erected on
or affixed to land. A transportable structure erected on its owner's land is also
included unless it is held for sale or is there only temporarily. New additions to
existing improvements may be included if the appraised value can be
determined. New personal property in a new improvement must have been
brought into the unit after January 1, 2014 and be located in a new improvement.
New improvements do include property on which a tax abatement agreement
has expired for 2015. New improvements do not include mineral interests
produced for the first time, omitted property that is back assessed and increased
appraisals on existing property. $308,043,066

22. Total adjustments to the 2015 taxable value. Add lines 20 and 21. $338,888,295

23. 2015 adjusted taxable value. Subtract line 22 from line 19. $2,432,854,226

24. 2015 effective tax rate. Divide line 15 by line 23 and multiply by $100. $0.614859/$100

25. COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the effective tax rates for each type of tax the
county levies. The total is the 2015 county effective tax rate. $/$100

A county, city or hospital district that adopted the additional sales tax in November 2014 or in May 2015 must
adjust its effective tax rate. The Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet on page 39 sets out this adjustment. Do not
forget to complete the Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet if the taxing unit adopted the additional sales tax on
these dates.



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 5/10

2015 Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet
City of Leander

See pages 17 to 21 for an explanation of the rollback tax rate.
26. 2014 maintenance and operations (M&O) tax rate. $0.418640/$100

27. 2014 adjusted taxable value. Enter the amount from line 11. $2,302,625,737

28. 2014 M&O taxes.
A. Multiply line 26 by line 27 and divide by $100. $9,639,712
B. Cities, counties and hospital districts with

additional sales tax: Amount of additional sales
tax collected and spent on M&O expenses in 2014.
Enter amount from full year's sales tax revenue
spent for M&O in 2014 fiscal year, if any. Other
units, enter "0." Counties exclude any amount that
was spent for economic development grants from
the amount of sales tax spent. + $0

C. Counties: Enter the amount for the state criminal
justice mandate. If second or later year, the
amount is for increased cost above last year's
amount. Other units, enter "0." + $0

D. Transferring function: If discontinuing all of a
department, function or activity and transferring it
to another unit by written contract, enter the
amount spent by the unit discontinuing the function
in the 12 months preceding the month of this
calculation. If the unit did not operate this function
for this 12month period, use the amount spent in
the last full fiscal year in which the unit operated
the function. The unit discontinuing the function
will subtract this amount in H below. The unit
receiving the function will add this amount in H
below. Other units, enter "0." +/ $0  



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 6/10

2015 Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

28.
(cont.)

E. Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2014:
Enter the amount of M&O taxes refunded during
the last budget year for tax years preceding tax
year 2014. Types of refunds include court
decisions, Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and
Section 31.11 payment errors. Do not include
refunds for tax year 2014. This line applies only to
tax years preceding tax year 2014. + $19,831

F. Enhanced indigent health care expenditures:
Enter the increased amount for the current year's
enhanced indigent health care expenditures above
the preceding tax year's enhanced indigent health
care expenditures, less any state assistance. + $0

G. Taxes in tax increment financing (TIF): Enter the
amount of taxes paid into the tax increment fund
for a reinvestment zone as agreed by the taxing
unit. If the unit has no 2015 captured appraised
value in Line 16D, enter "0."  $113,158

H. Adjusted M&O Taxes. Add A, B, C, E and F. For
unit with D, subtract if discontinuing function and
add if receiving function. Subtract G.   $9,546,385

29. 2015 adjusted taxable value.
Enter line 23 from the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $2,432,854,226

30. 2015 effective maintenance and operations rate.
Divide line 28H by line 29 and multiply by $100. $0.392394/$100

31. 2015 rollback maintenance and operation rate.
Multiply line 30 by 1.08. (See lines 49 to 52 for additional rate for pollution control
expenses. $0.423785/$100



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 7/10

2015 Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet (continued)
City of Leander

 

32. Total 2015 debt to be paid with property taxes and additional sales tax
revenue. 
"Debt" means the interest and principal that will be paid on debts that: 
(1) are paid by property taxes,
(2) are secured by property taxes,
(3) are scheduled for payment over a period longer than one year and
(4) are not classified in the unit's budget as M&O expenses.
A: Debt also includes contractual payments to other

taxing units that have incurred debts on behalf of
this taxing unit, if those debts meet the four
conditions above. Include only amounts that will be
paid from property tax revenue. Do not include
appraisal district budget payments. List the debt in
Schedule B: Debt Service. $6,964,040

B: Subtract unencumbered fund amount used to
reduce total debt. $608,965

C: Subtract amount paid from other resources. $0
D: Adjusted debt. Subtract B and C from A. $6,355,075

33. Certified 2014 excess debt collections. Enter the amount certified by the
collector. $0

34. Adjusted 2015 debt. Subtract line 33 from line 32. $6,355,075

35. Certified 2015 anticipated collection rate. Enter the rate certified by the
collector. If the rate is 100 percent or greater, enter 100 percent. 100.000000%

36. 2015 debt adjusted for collections. Divide line 34 by line 35. $6,355,075

37. 2015 total taxable value. Enter the amount on line 19. $2,771,742,521

38. 2015 debt tax rate. Divide line 36 by line 37 and multiply by $100. $0.229280/$100

39. 2015 rollback tax rate. Add lines 31 and 38. $0.653065/$100

40. COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the rollback tax rates for each type of tax the
county levies. The total is the 2015 county rollback tax rate. $/$100

 
A taxing unit that adopted the additional sales tax must complete the lines for the Additional Sales Tax Rate. A
taxing unit seeking additional rollback protection for pollution control expenses completes the Additional Rollback
Protection for Pollution Control.



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 8/10

2015 Notice of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet for Calculation of Tax Increase/Decrease

 
Entity Name: City of Leander Date: 08/25/2015
 
      

1.2014 taxable value, adjusted for courtordered reductions.
Enter line 6 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $2,309,261,664    

2.2014 total tax rate.
Enter line 4 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. 0.652920    

3.Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2014.
Enter line 13 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $30,066    

4.Last year's levy.
Multiply Line 1 times Line 2 and divide by 100.
To the result, add Line 3. $15,107,697    

5.2015 total taxable value. Enter Line 19 of
the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $2,771,742,521    

6.2015 effective tax rate.
Enter line 24 of the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet or Line 47
of the Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet. 0.614859    

7.2015 taxes if a tax rate equal to the effective tax rate is adopted.
Multiply Line 5 times Line 6 and divide by 100. $17,042,308    

8.Last year's total levy.
Sum of line 4 for all funds. $15,107,697 

9.2015 total taxes if a tax rate equal to the effective tax rate is adopted.
Sum of line 7 for all funds. $17,042,308 

10.Tax Increase (Decrease).
Subtract Line 8 from Line 9. $1,934,611 



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 9/10

City of Leander
Tax Rate Recap for 2015 Tax Rates

 

Description of Rate
Tax Rate
Per $100

Tax Levy
This is calculated using
the Total Adjusted

Taxable Value (line 19)
of the Effective Tax
Rate Worksheet

Additional Tax Levy
Compared to last year's
tax levy of 16,357,098

Additional Tax Levy
Compared to effective

tax rate levy of
17,042,308

Last Year's Tax Rate 0.652920 $18,097,261 $1,740,163 $1,054,953

Effective Tax Rate 0.614859 $17,042,308 $685,210 $0

Notice & Hearing Limit* 0.614859 $17,042,308 $685,210 $0

Rollback Tax Rate 0.653065 $18,101,280 $1,744,182 $1,058,972

Proposed Tax Rate 0.632920 $17,542,913 $1,185,814 $500,604

 
Effective Tax Rate Increase in Cents per $100
0.00 0.614859 17,042,308 685,210 0

0.50 0.619859 17,180,895 823,797 138,587

1.00 0.624859 17,319,483 962,384 277,174

1.50 0.629859 17,458,070 1,100,971 415,761

2.00 0.634859 17,596,657 1,239,559 554,349

2.50 0.639859 17,735,244 1,378,146 692,936

3.00 0.644859 17,873,831 1,516,733 831,523

3.50 0.649859 18,012,418 1,655,320 970,110

4.00 0.654859 18,151,005 1,793,907 1,108,697

4.50 0.659859 18,289,592 1,932,494 1,247,284

5.00 0.664859 18,428,180 2,071,081 1,385,871

5.50 0.669859 18,566,767 2,209,668 1,524,458

6.00 0.674859 18,705,354 2,348,256 1,663,046

6.50 0.679859 18,843,941 2,486,843 1,801,633

7.00 0.684859 18,982,528 2,625,430 1,940,220

7.50 0.689859 19,121,115 2,764,017 2,078,807

8.00 0.694859 19,259,702 2,902,604 2,217,394

8.50 0.699859 19,398,289 3,041,191 2,355,981

9.00 0.704859 19,536,877 3,179,778 2,494,568

9.50 0.709859 19,675,464 3,318,365 2,633,155

10.00 0.714859 19,814,051 3,456,953 2,771,743

10.50 0.719859 19,952,638 3,595,540 2,910,330

11.00 0.724859 20,091,225 3,734,127 3,048,917

11.50 0.729859 20,229,812 3,872,714 3,187,504

12.00 0.734859 20,368,399 4,011,301 3,326,091

12.50 0.739859 20,506,986 4,149,888 3,464,678

13.00 0.744859 20,645,574 4,288,475 3,603,265

13.50 0.749859 20,784,161 4,427,062 3,741,852

14.00 0.754859 20,922,748 4,565,650 3,880,440

14.50 0.759859 21,061,335 4,704,237 4,019,027

 
*Notice & Hearing Limit Rate: This is the highest tax rate that may be adopted without notices and a public hearing.
It is the lower of the rollback tax rate or the effective tax rate.
School Districts: The school tax rate limit is $1.50 for M&O, plus $0.50 for 'New' debt plus a rate for 'Old' debt. 'Old'
debt is debt authorized to be issued at an election held on or before April 1, 1991, and issued before September 1,
1992. All other debt is 'New' debt.



8/25/2015 www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 10/10

Tax Levy: This is calculated by taking the adjusted taxable value (line 19 of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet), multiplying by the appropriate rate, such as the Effective Tax Rate and
dividing by 100.

For School Districts: This is calculated by taking the adjusted taxable value (line 34
of the Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet), multiplying by the appropriate rate, dividing by
100 and then adding this year's frozen tax levy on homesteads of the elderly.

 
Additional Levy
Last Year:

This is calculated by taking Last Year's taxable value (line 3 of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet), multiplying by Last Year's tax rate (line 4 of Effective Tax Rate
Worksheet) and dividing by 100.

For School Districts: This is calculated by taking Last Year's taxable value,
subtracting Last Year's taxable value for the elderly, multiplying by Last Year's tax
rate, dividing by 100 and adding Last Year's tax ceiling.

 
Additional Levy
This Year:

This is calculated by taking the current adjusted taxable value, multiplying by the
Effective Tax Rate and dividing by 100.

For School Districts: This is calculated by taking the adjusted taxable value (line 34
of the Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet), multiplying by the Effective Tax Rate, dividing
by 100 and adding This Year's tax ceiling.

 
COUNTIES
ONLY:

All figures in this worksheet include ALL County Funds. Tax Levy amounts are the
sum of each Fund's Taxable Value X each Fund's Tax Rate.



8/25/2015 Notice of Proposed Tax Rate (Exceeds)

http://www.truthintaxation.com/PrintForms.aspx 1/1

PROPOSED TAX RATE

PRECEDING YEAR'S TAX
RATE
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

ROLLBACK TAX RATE

NOTICE OF 2015 TAX YEAR PROPOSED
PROPERTY TAX RATE FOR

City of Leander
A tax rate of $0.632920 per $100 valuation has been proposed by the governing body of City of
Leander. This rate exceeds the lower of the effective or rollback tax rate, and state law requires that
two public hearings be held by the governing body before adopting the proposed tax rate.

$0.632920 per $100

$0.652920 per $100

$0.614859 per $100

$0.653065 per $100

The effective tax rate is the total tax rate needed to raise the same amount of property tax revenue for
City of Leander from the same properties in both the 2014 tax year and the 2015 tax year. 

The rollback tax rate is the highest tax rate that City of Leander may adopt before voters are entitled
to petition for an election to limit the rate that may be approved to the rollback rate.

YOUR TAXES OWED UNDER ANY OF THE ABOVE RATES CAN BE CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS:

property tax amount = (rate) x (taxable value of your property) / 100

For assistance or detailed information about tax calculations, please contact: 

Deborah M. Hunt, CTA 
Williamson County tax assessorcollector 
904 S. Main Street, Georgetown, TX 78626 
5129431603 
proptax@wilco.org 
www.wilco.org 

You are urged to attend and express your views at the following public hearings on proposed tax rate: 
First Hearing: 09/14/2015 6:00 PM at Pat Bryson Municipal Hall, 201 N Brushy St, Leander, TX
78641 
Second Hearing: 09/17/2015 7:00 PM at Pat Bryson Municipal Hall, 201 N Brushy St, Leander, TX
78641



AGENDA ITEM # 20 

 
Executive Summary 

 September 3, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:   Consider a Proposal to Adopt a Tax Rate for FY 2015-16. 

 
Background:    If a taxing entity desires to consider a possible tax rate that would exceed 

either the effective tax rate or rollback tax rate, whichever is lower, state “Truth-in-

Taxation” laws require the governing body to vote on the proposed tax rate and schedule 

two public hearings.  The proposed rate need not be the final rate that the governing body 

actually adopts, but the final rate cannot exceed the proposed rate.  The FY 2015-16 

budget includes a proposed rate of 63.292 cents per $100 which is 2.0 cents below the 

current rate, but more than the effective tax rate of 61.4859 cents.  The rollback rate is 

65.3065 cents.  If the City Council does not wish to consider a rate greater than the 

effective rate, then the public hearings would not be required on the tax rate. 

  

Origination:       Robert G. Powers, Finance Director  

 
Financial Consideration:  N.A.  

 
Recommendation:     Move to place the proposed tax rate for FY 2015-16 of 63.292 

cents per $100 valuation on the agenda of a future meeting as an action item. 

 
Attachments:    N.A. 

 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director    



AGENDA ITEM # 21 

 
Executive Summary 

 September 3, 2015 

 

Agenda Subject:   Schedule Two Public Hearings on a Proposal to Adopt a Tax Rate for 

FY 2015-16. 

 
Background:   If a taxing entity desires to consider a possible tax rate that would exceed 

either the effective tax rate or rollback tax rate, whichever is lower, state “Truth-in-

Taxation” laws require the governing body to vote on the proposed tax rate and schedule 

two public hearings.  The proposed rate need not be the final rate that the governing body 

actually adopts, but the final rate cannot exceed the proposed rate.  The FY 2015-16 

budget includes a proposed rate of 63.292 cents per $100 which is 2.0 cents below the 

current rate, but more than the effective tax rate of 61.4859 cents.  The rollback rate is 

65.3065 cents.  If the City Council does not wish to consider a rate greater than the 

effective rate, then the public hearings would not be required on the tax rate. 

 

Origination:       Robert G. Powers, Finance Director  

 
Financial Consideration:  N.A.  

 
Recommendation:     Schedule two Public Hearings in order to allow the City Council to 

consider a rate greater than the effective tax rate of 61.4859 cents per $100 valuation, 

which would require the following motion: "Move to schedule two public hearings on 

September 14, 2015 (special called City Council meeting beginning at 6:00 p.m.) and 

September 17, 2015 (regular City Council meeting beginning at 7:00 p.m.) to consider a 

proposal to adopt a tax rate of 63.292 cents per $100 valuation." 

 
Attachments:    N.A. 

 
Prepared by:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director    



AGENDA ITEM # 22 
 

 

Executive Summary 

September 3, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Water Supply Update  
 
 Background:  The City of Leander is currently following a voluntary Twice-a-Week 
(Stage 1) outdoor watering schedule since August 6, 2015.  Recent spring rains in the 
Lower Colorado River watershed have significantly increased the combined water supply 
in Lakes Travis and Buchanan from 767,185 acre-feet on May 1st to a current storage of 
1,519,432 acre-feet of combined storage on August 26th for a combined storage of 75% 
full.  Recently the combined storage of both lakes has begun to drop slightly, 
approximately 3% over the last month.  The attached Leander Water Use Graph shows 
recent water use for July and August of this year.   
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:   None 
 
Attachments: City of Leander Water Use Table 

LCRA Highland Lakes Storage Chart (As of 8/1/2015) 
LCRA Water Supply Status 

 
Prepared by:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 



Day July August

1 4.47 6.30

2 3.77 7.90

3 3.51 8.50

4 3.13 8.70

5 3.94 10.10

6 4.77 10.40

7 4.86 7.70

8 5.94 7.70

9 5.93 9.00

10 4.60 6.80

11 4.61 8.30

12 5.76 11.90

13 5.80 9.10

14 6.79 6.90

15 7.13 7.00

16 7.63 9.20

17 5.23 6.30

18 5.64 8.90

19 5.44 8.80

20 7.80 9.60

21 8.30 6.50

22 8.00 6.10

23 7.60 8.90

24 6.70 6.30

25 6.30

26 6.60

27 6.40

28 8.20

29 8.40

30 10.50

31 4.70

July Aug. (24 days)

Average 6.08 8.20

Max Day 10.50 11.90

7/20-8/6 8/7-8/24 

Average 7.62 8.06

18 day TTL 141.40 145.00 (200,000 Gallons a day difference for 18 days)

Treated Water (MG)

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
G

al
lo

n
s 

Day 

CITY OF LEANDER WATER USE 

July 2015

August 2015



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.0

2.1

2.2

(m
ill

io
n

a
c
re

-f
e
e
t)

Highland Lakes Storage

What could happen
2010 Water Management Plan

Trigger Points
Where we've been

2010 Water Management Plan
Trigger Points

Where we've been
2010 Water Management Plan

Trigger Points

Where we've been

Lakes Buchanan and Travis full at 2.01 million acre-feet (a-f) 1.9 million a-f - On Jan. 1 or July 1 - Interruptible
94% Total Combined Capacity - Interruptible supplies ceased for
all customers except four major irrigation operations.

1.4 million a-f - On Jan. 1 - Interruptible
Begin gradual curtailment of interruptible supply to four
major irrigation operations. Curtailment increases with
lower storage levels. Environmental releases for instream
flows are reduced to meet critical needs.

1.4 million a-f - Any time - Firm Demands
Request firm customers to implement voluntary water use
reduction measures to achieve a 5 percent reduction in use.

1.7 million a-f - On Jan. 1 - Bay and Estuary
Reduce bay and estuary releases to meet 150 percent of
critical needs (limited by Storable Inflows).

1.1 million a-f - On Jan. 1 - Bay and Estuary
Environmental releases for bay and estuaries are reduced to
meet critical needs.

What could
happen

2010 Water Management Plan
trigger points

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

1.0

Aug 2014 Nov 2014 Feb 2015 May 2015 Aug 2015 Nov 2015 Feb 2016

V
o

lu
m

e

Note: One acre-foot equals 325,851 gallons.

Where we've been

FUTUREPAST

Date: August 1, 2015

600,000 a-f - "Drought Worse Than Drought of
Record" declaration - Cease Interruptible and
Curtail Firm - If the Board issues a "Drought Worse Than

Drought of Record" declaration under the 2010 Water
Management Plan, begin curtailment of firm supply after ceasing
interruptible supply (timing based on duration of drought).

900,000 a-f - Any time - Firm Demands
Request firm customers to implement mandatory water use
restrictions to achieve a 10-20 percent reduction in use. Meet
with customers to develop a curtailment plan should drought
worsen.

Forecast - Average Conditions

Forecast - Drought Conditions

Historic Lake Storage

Forecast - Wet Conditions

Forecast - Extreme Drought Conditions

J
a
n

u
a
ry

1



78%

Jan. 1, 2011, reduced 
supply for environmental 
flows when storage was 
1.55 million a-f

Request voluntary firm 
demand reductions

Reduce agricultural 
supply**

38%

June 1

65%

July 1

71%

May 1

38%

Sept. 1

   77%-75%

Oct. 1

   79%-73%

Nov. 1

83%-72%

Begin environmental 
reductions**

Agricultural supply cut off

Mandatory firm demand 
reductions

May 2, 2011, requested 
voluntary firm demand 
reductions, when storage 
was less than 1.4 million 
a-f

April 18, 2012, requested 
continuation of mandatory 
firm demand reductions 
until storage exceeds 1.1 
million a-f
 

Oct. 1

   73%-70%

Sept. 1

   75%-73% 71%-67%

Nov. 1

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Increase reductions for 
agriculture*

Increase voluntary firm 
demand reductions

Increase reductions for 
environmental**

Aug. 23, 2011, requested 
firm water customers 
implement mandatory 
water use restrictions

Jan. 1, 2012, further 
reduced supply for 
environmental flows when 
storage was 0.74 million a-f

March 1, 2012, reduced 
supply for agriculture when 
storage was 847,324 a-f

March 1, 2013, reduced 
supply for agriculture when 
storage was 822,782 a-f

March 1, 2014, reduced 
supply for agriculture when 
storage was 761,270 a-f

March 1, 2015, reduced 
supply for agriculture when 
storage was 717,053 a-f

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Storage could fall below 
600,000 a-f in early 2017 
if very dry conditions 
persist

• 

• 

• 

• 

Emergency
<600,000 a-f 

(<30%)
(“Drought Worse Than Drought 
of Record” declaration under 

2010 Water Management Plan)

Severe
<900,000–
600,000 a-f
(45%–30%)

Cautious
<1.4 million– 
900,000 a-f
(70%–45%)

Fair
<1.7–1.4 million a-f

(85%–70%)

Good
2–1.7 million a-f

(>85%)

None

W
a

te
r 

Su
p
p
ly

Im
p
a
ct

s
A

ct
io

ns
Fo

re
ca

st

Water Supply Status
Aug. 1, 2015

Lakes Travis and Buchanan Current Storage: 1,562,579 acre-feet

We Are Here

Last Three Months

Average Outlook

Very Dry Outlook

One Year Ago

 * Based on March 1 storage in lakes
 ** Based on Jan. 1 storage in lakes

Note: One acre-foot (a-f) equals 325,851 gallons.



AGENDA ITEM # 23 

 
Executive Summary 
September 3, 2015 

 
 
 

      Agenda Subject: Consider Bond Task Force Committee: 
                                       a.  Qualifications and appointments 
                                  b.  Consider Election Date 
   

Background:  Council discussed at the August 20th meeting the appointment of two 
council members to the Committee.  It was decided that there would not be any tax 
increase related to any bond items.  Once the committee is formed, council needs to 
discuss the possible date for a bond election. 
 

Origination: City Council   

 
Recommendation:  N/A 

 
Attachments:    N/A 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile TRMC, City Secretary    


	Agenda
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item #16a
	Item 16b
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 20
	Item # 21
	Item # 22
	Item # 23



